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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Sharehaolders and the Board of Directors of Open Joint Stock Company
"Territorial Generation Company 4" (JSC “TGC-4")

We have audited the accompanying consalidatad financal statements of JSC "TGC-4" and ity
subsidiaries (the "TGC-4 Group") which comprise the consolidated balance sheel ag of

31 Decamber Z200& and the consolidaled [ncome statament, consolidated stalemant of cash flows
and consalidated statemant of changes in equily for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting palicies and other explanalory notes

Managament's Responsibility for the Financial Staterments

Managemenl Is rezponsible for the preparation and fall presentalion of these conzalidated finanall
statements in accordance with International Financial Reparting Standards. This responsibility
includes designing, implamenting and malintaining infernal control relavant ta the preparation and
fawr presentation of financial statements that are free from matenal misstaternent, whethar due to
fraud or errar; selecting and applylng appropriate accounting pelicies. and making accounting
aslimates that are reasonable i the circumetances

Aurdifor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is (o express an opinlon on these consolldated linancial slatemenlts based an our
audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with Inlernational Standards an Audiling Thosa
Standaids require thal wa comply wilh ethical requirements and plan and perform (he audil to
obtain reasanable assurance whethar the financial stalemants are free from matenal misstatement

An audil invelves performing procedures (o obtaln audll evidence z@bout the amounls and
diselasures in the financial statemeants The procedures selectad depand on the auditor's judgment,
Including the assessmenlt of the risks af material misstatement of the financial statements, whethe|
due Lo frad of error. In making those gk assessmants, the auditor conslders Intermal control
relevant to the enlity's preparation and fan presentalion of the financial statemeants in order to
design audil procedures Ihal arg appropriate In the clreumestances, bul nol for the purpose ol
axpressing an apinion on the effectiveness of the antity's internal control An audil also inchides
evalualing the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
eslimates made by management as well as evaluating the averall presentation of tha financisl
stalements,

We believe that the audil evidence we have oblained |s sufficient and appropriate ta provide a
basis for our audil apinion.

Qpifiion

In our opimon, the accompanying congalidatad linancial statemearts present fainly in all matenal
regpects, the financial position of the TGC-4 Group as of 31 December 2008, and of it linancial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporing Standards

A e wedeateuse (opers el

Moscow, Russian Federalion
1% July 2008
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TGC-4 GROUP

Consolidated Balarice Shoet as al 31 Decepiber 2008

il ihausands of Russian Boubles. unless mhorwim-ﬂit‘.l&d}

11 Degembder

3 Dacember

. Notes. _2008 2007
ASSETS
Non-current pesets
Propeity, plant and sguiprien i 21B70270 3840579
Intangible assets 81,327 28,160
Invastments (i hssaciales 5 13,440 13463
Delerrad lax assels 1 f42 178 A0, 9351
Long-term accounts rocevabie and prapayiments 11 0 OhG 100,948
_Bithel non-currant assets . 9 ___ 140489 121007
Total non-currant assets 22,718,706 39,250,909
Current assots
Invanilories 10 1 860,247 1.928.123
Accounts recavable and prapayments i 4 204 594 3,084 321
Curfent incoma tax prepayments 1710 168,031
Ueposiis in banks 12 4 500,000
Caah anid eash equivalents i3 4,502,604 j4H,63/7
Ollief evrrenl assets S SR - B I 5:1:
Total eurrent assots . 15,258,607 5,401,674
TOTAL ASSETS 37,977,313 44,682,583
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital
Ordinary shares (nomimal vals) 18 125 066 13,212 020
Pralarenion sharos 62,720 THE 720
Trensury shanes {1,065)
Shary preémium 10,521,007 064,867
Marger resarvi {1,807 6803) (1,807,594
Ravaluation reserve (6 property, plant and agquipmen 3,485 457 0664 2606
Relalned earriings o o ~ (570BATT) 2,800,440
Equiity attributable to shargholdors n[Tf,?.c:-d 4 28,765,500 26,671,367
Minarity intevest 3400 27.368
TOTAL EQUITY 26,772,901 26,698,755
Nan-current labllitiea “
Mo det 17 1,078,544 b 5668 470
Befarred tax liabilles 21 5066, G0 5,286,075
Pensioi ||a]_1ll|.1||_r:$ o 18 805,440 ~ Ta5187
Total nen-current llumlmm = 2,450,691 11,560,632
Currant liabilities o
Curfent debt and suprent porlion ol nan-cuironl debl 18 5,670,620 4,904,707
Accounts payable and nocrunts 14 1,261,144 1,152,267
Provislon lor legal clalins 24 #1280 48,664
Current Income fax labilities 248,745 3.a378
Ot laxes poayable o 20 __B5HE15 214,288
Tatal current liabilitios ——= 8,753,721 6,383,196
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 11,204,412 17,953,828
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIEB 37,977,313 A4, 652 583

Croperal Director

Chiel Accolintanl

E.¥. Abramiby
| A Lapitskaya

16 duly 2004

The aooampunying noles a'e an (nlegral pan of these donsolidatid linpnell stalements
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TGC-4 GROUP

Cansalidated Income Statoment for the year ondod 31 Pecombor 2008
(i thousands of Russian Roubles, unless otherwiso sltalad)

Hoevanie
Ol operaling Incame

Operating axpenses ollier i impaiment palated to prapety

plant and equipment

linpaiimeant (chiarge) 7 oversal reldted Lo propeity, plant and

aLlipmend
Ravaluation wiite dowrn
_Operating loss

Financa ineome

Flinance casts

Share of resull of nssociales
Loss bafore income tax
Income tox benefl -
l-.‘-“.l.ﬁ. for the year from cantinuing operations

Diseantinued oporations,

Profil fai the year lrem discontinued operstions
Loss for the year
Allribuitable 1o

The Group shareholders
Minanty intarast

Losa per ardinary share for loss from cantinuing

operationa attributable to the Group shareholders — basic

and diluted (in Russian Roubles per share)

Earnings per ordinary share for profit lrom discontinued
aperations attributable 1o the Group sharehalders — basic

_and dilutod {in Russian Reubles por share)

Gunaral Duaalor

Cihief Aceauntant

Motos
22
22
23

B
2

24
24

21

15

15

Your ondod
31 December

Yoarandod
3 Dacombin

2008 2007
28222 7T 24 B27 270
308,171 219,186
(20,7010, H4%) (24,845,863
(10,600,862 276,480
- (B25701)
{11,850,763) (5,975.867)
540,216 10,518
(923.267) (#36,412)
242 1416
(12,233 582) (6,794,445
2489715 1,578,388
(9,743,867) {5.215,057)
R — _Gaa6s
{9,743,867) {5,152,592)
(0,7 19,880) {5,147 A87)
(23 587) {16, 125)
{0.008) {0.004)
0.00005

EY Abramoy

I A Lapllakays

15 July 20048

The necompsiiving notes are #in magral pail ol these consolidatod innnais! alalamenls
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TGC-4 GROURP

Gonsolidatod Statemant of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 Decomber 2008

(It thouamnds of Russian Roubles inless ofherwise slatod)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Loss bofore Incomo tax

Profil for thi yenr front discontinued operallons
Adjustmenis for othar non-cash items

[eiprecation of propery, phintand squipme
Amorization of intangible assels

fmpaliment chame / (reversal ol ieliled 1o propeity, plant and

adLipment
Rovaltiation write down

Income tex related (o discantinued opaalions

Loss o disposal of subsidiary

Share of profits of assoceta

o5 on digposal of aseooial:

Accounts payable waillon off

Ineraase of accounta recelvabile lmpalimant

Aceatinls recaivable witter-ofl

fnerease of inventary impalanent pravision

Exchunge dilferaicas

interast expanse

[l el ineoime

limparment of available-for-sale financial asseis

Iimpairment of investments In aasociale

Loss an disposal of propatly, plant and equipman

Pansion inlarest expepse

Pansian aparaling axponass/aconials

Hravision for legal clams

Eithist: haniel (leins

Operating cash flows baforo working capital changes

andincome taxpaid

[peresasies iy aigcatinls recelvalile and prespmeils

lereana [olhar cuiren| assels

Decrease ninventones

Ingiease [ olhai notkouiren| assnts

Dieoraage in accounts poyalle and accpis

Iicrrade i taxes payalilie dihst han o o

Cash provided by oporating activities bafore Interest and
taxes

e tas pondd

lirtaneal i

It ed recead
“Net cash generated from operating activities

Natgs

B, 23
P

11, 23

24
24

1H, 24
16,23
2376

Yeai ondod
11 Decambaor
2008

(12,233 582)

3444180
ba 338
10,600, 862

(233)

(7, 977)
490,104
4,214
278

427
BG4, 120
(540,218
45,268
5 166

1 286
EO 147
86,606
787 821
(21.020)

3,643,368
(1,610 124)
304,775
(52,586)
(89 129)
145,305

2,541,630
af,174
(B81.977)
A1 BE3

2,176,689

Yoar andod
31 Decembar
2007

(6,784,445)
£3,465

3,191,973
#,707
(279.480)

B,257815
{10,431
(A8, 7o)

(7,318)
12,053
15.0/8)
(3,534
7l
8,062
12,600
87 21%
EREY
26,063

17,237
46194
85,430
28,458
(76,902)

3,371,866
(1,202 791)
[30.516)
84,430
(B3.835)
(71,340
1,445

_2,064,167
(344), 658}
(131,128

| 016

093 384

The acesiipaiying hotes are anintedral par of (hesoe consolidated financiil stalaminis
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TGC-4 GROUP

Consolidatod Statement of Cash Flows for the year endod 31 Dacomber 2006

{In thousands of Russian Roubles, unless olhaiwise statod)

Matos
CASH FLOW FROWM INVESTING ACTIVITIES; ——
Purchase ol property, plant and equipment and othal non-
currenl assels
Frocoeds from sale of propetty, plant and squpment anad ol
nén=current aasals
Plrchase of nlanglble assals
Proceeds from sale of assoclatns .
Purchase of shart-lenm inancial inveslinania
Procaeds from sale of shart-darm {inancial invesiments
Bisposil of subsidialles fet of cash disposad
Dividends recaived
Not cash used in investing activities —
"EASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: o
Repaymen) of inance lsase
Proscasess limiim boimswinge
[Repayment of tebis
Procoods fien bands [ssuande
Expenses from bonds issuance
Furehase of freasury shares
Précnadﬁ. tiam ahaie Issuance
Dwidands paid
‘Not cash generatad from financing activities - —
Incraase In cash and cash equivalonts
Cﬁlﬁh l,'}q\[ﬂﬁil-l-l'”_‘lt; al 'Ih_a“h-_aal-rﬁlﬁ-[i of this year -
Caah and cash quivalens atine end of e year
Goperal Direclor f
1 J’;}‘}-I'gmllel;ﬂ-‘-:ﬂr* Iif' 'r' r,f 'y

Chilet Accodntani

Yool endoed

a1 December

(5,428 98
28 264
(06,.28T)

(8,000,000)

3,600,000

250
(9.987315)

(168,821
a0.816 18a
(34,228,456)

(33 463)
15,822,000
(7.760)
12,201,683
4,394,067
T 18B.GA7

4502684

Yoear andod
31 December
2007

(8,554,276)
56 45

(1h,707)
15,100
(31,313
32,000
03,174
1,083
(5.406,384)

{167 poss

41 327,366
{31,367 587)
% (00,000
(B60)

(266 143)

4,404,791
1,796
41
158,637

E Y Abramsy

|.A Lapitskaya

14 diily 2008

Tl Aceompanylng notes are an intontal par ol these conaolldated [hancal alaiamonis
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TGLC-4 Group
Motes to the Conzolidatod Financial Statemaents for the year ended 31 Docomber 2008
{in Iheusands of Russian Roubles, unless othe iwlse statad)

Mote 1. The Group and its opamations

Open Joini-Stock Company “Tarmtoral Generatlon Company 4" ("TGC-4" or 'the Company’) was
astablished on 18 April 2005 as a subsidiary of OJSC "RAG UES of Russia” (|RAD UES") within |ha
framawork ol Russan alectricily sector restruciuring

As at 31 December 2D08 the Group TGC-A (herainafter - the Group) incorparates TGC-A wilh len
branches located in Belgorod, Bryansk, Voronezh, Kaluga, Kurek, Lipetsk, Oryol, Ryazan, Smolensk and
Tula and subsidiaries Thea principal subsidiaries are listed in Nole 5

The Campany is incorporaled in accordance with the Russian Federalion legisialion,
The Company's registered office |s located at 89, Timityazey Sir | 300600, Tula, Russia.

As al 31 December 2008, the number of the Group's employees was 16,462 (as at 31 Decembar 2007
16.802).

The Campany's sharas are listed In the Russian Trade System.

TGC-4 operates 10 generating branches. The Group's principal activity is generation and sale of
elactricity (capacity) and heat

Main developments in the Group’s farmation protess

= On 28 February 2008 the general shareholders' mestings of 8 redional generaling sompanies -
JSC Bryansk Generating Company”, JSC "Voronezh Genarating Company’ JSC "Kaluga
Generaling Company’ JSC "Kursk Generaling Company’| JSC “Oryol Ganaraling Company”,
JSC "Prioksk Territonal Generating Company  JSC "Ryazan Heal Supply Company” and JSC
*Smolensk Generating Company” - ook decisions lo resiganize the companies in (he form of §
merger with TGC- an the conditions envisaged by the Marger Agreemant and fo approve [ha
Marger Agreement and deeds of transfer of the companies reorganized in the form of a merger
willy TGC-4

= Op B Apnl 2006 similar decisions ware laken al the extraodinary general meetings of
shareholders of JSC “Lipetsk Generaling Company” and JSC "Tambov Generating Company”

On 21 July 2008 the general meeting of shareholdars of JSC "Hest Power Campany” (Balgorod)
took decisions 1o reorganize the company in the form of a merger with TGC.-4 on the conditions
anvisaged by the Merger Agreement and to approve the Merger Agreament and the deed ol
lransfer

« On 21 July 2006 the Board of RAD UES performing the functions al the general meating of
shareholdars of TGC-4 ook decisions to recrganize the Company in the form of a lakeover of lis
11 regional generaling companies, to approve the Merger Agreement and Increase Ihe Group's
charter capilal by placing addilionsl shares for converting Ihe shares of merged comparneas (i the
manner envisaged by the Merger Agreemenl. Conversion coeflicants were determined as wel|

= On 15 Sepltember 2006 termination of activities of the 11 reglanal generating companies as a
resull of the margar with TGC-4 was registered in the Uniform State Register of Lagal Entities
Shares of the merged comparnies were converted and TGC started to operate as a single
company,

These devalapment‘a fEPn‘ﬂﬁEntEd the fEﬂI"Qﬂn'Sﬂlan ol entilies wnder common control and were
accountad for using the predecessor values method (Note 14)

Changes in the Group

= Al Ihe exiraocrdinary deneral meeling held on 21 August 2007 TGC-4's sharehalders decitad
increase the aquily capial of TGC-4 by placing 586,000,000,000 additional ordinary registered
shares with a par value of RR 0.01 per share and & total par value of RR 5 860 000 thousand
The placement was execulad i May 2008 at the price of RR 0 027 par share as defined by the
Board of Directors. As a result of this placemant TGC-4 raised cash of RR 15,822,000 thousand
{Note 14)
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TGC-4 Group
Notes ta the Consolidalad Finaneial Statements for the year endod 31 Decamber 2008
(in thousands of Russion Roubles, unlass othirwisd sinted)

Mote 1, The Group and its operations (continued)

RAO UES's interest in TGC-4 decreased rom 50 02% to 34 B489% as a result of the addihonal
placemant of shares. |n June 2008 RAD UES's Inleres! decressed lo 0% due to the sale of
TGC-A's shares previously owned by RAO UES to ONEXIM HOLDINGS LIMITED and tha
transfer of 212 754,487 344 shares ta JSC "TGC-4 Halding” for subsequent merger of J5C TGO
4 Holding" with TGC-4

As at the reporting date ONEXIM HOLDINGS LIMITED who owns 49 B89% of the Company's
ardinary shares has significant influence over the Company

s On 29 April 2008 the Board of Direclors of TGC-4 appraved (he decision on tha addilional ssus
al the registerad non-documentary ordinary shares of TGC-4 amaunling fo 6 600,255 887 shares
with a par value of RR 0.01 each, which are placed when spinning-off JSC "TGC-4 Holding" from
RAQ UES with a simultanaous merger of JSC “TGC-4 Holding” with TGC-4 by converting he
shares of JSC "TGC-4 Holding" into the shares of TGC-4 In total 5,303,612 800 sharas with a
par value of RR 001 each wera placad In the merger process (1,296,642 897 shares remained
unplaced) (Note 14)

The rearganizalion of TGC-4 in the farm of a marger with JSC "TGCA Holding" was finalized on
1 July 2008, All shares of JSC "TGC-4 Holding" were convaertad into TGC-A's shares using (he
conversion ratios set out in the merger pgreement,

+ 30 June 2008 TGC-4 was reorganized in the form of a mergar with ts wholly owned subsidiary
JEC "Novomoskovskaya GRES, in accordance with decision of TGC-4 shareholders taken on 24
Octobar 2007 at the extraardinary ganeral meating (Note &)

Craation of subsidiaries

In November 2007 the Board of Dirsctors made & decision ta establish JSC "Orlovskaya Heal Network
Company' (TGC-4's interest is 100%) and JSC "Belgorodskaya Heal Nelwork Company’ (TGC-'s
Interast 15 100%:),

JSC "Oriovskaya Heat Nelwork Company' was registered In November 2007 with the charler capital of
RR 10,000 thousand lo be paid in cash Notfication of the FFMS Reglonal Branch on the state
regisiration of the securities’ issue and the reporl on the results of the stack issue of JSC "Orlovskays
[Heat Network Company’ was providad on 19 February 2008

JSC "Belgorodskaya Heat Network Company” was registered in December 2007 with the charler capital
ol RR 3,084 430 thousand of which RR 10,000 thousand are o be pald In cash and RR 3,074 430
thousand to be contributad by other assels (fixed assets at markel value datermined by an indepandeant
appraiser). The charter capital was paid up in February 2008

Notification of the FFMS Regional Branch on the state registration of the securilies’ |ssue and the reporfl
on the resulis of the stock issue of JSC "Belgorodskaya Heat Network Company was provided on 12
March 2008,

In August 2008 the Board of Direclors adopled a decision 1o establish JSC "Smalenskaya Heal Network
Company" (TGC-4's intarast is 100%),

JBC "Smolenskaya Heat Network Company” was registared on 18 August 2008 with the charier capital of
RR 1,000 thousand (o be pald in cash, The charter capilal was paid up in October 2008 Notification of
the FFMS Regional Branch on the state registration of the securities’ ssus and the report on (he rasulls
ol the siock issue of JSC "Smolenskaya Heat Network Company” was pravided on 7 Octobei 2008

In September 2008 the Board of Directors adopted a decision to establish JSC "Kurskaya Heal Netwark
Company" (TGC-4 5 Interes! 15 100%) and In J5C "Smolenskieploenergoremont” (TGC-4's inlerest |5
100%:),

JSC "Kurskaya Heal Network Company” was reqistered in October 2008, wilh the charter capital of
R 1,000 theusand o be pald in cash The charter capltal was pald up in Novembesr 2008 Noliljzation of
the FFME Regiangl Branch on [he state regisiration of the securities’ issue apd the repart on {h(w resulis
ol thie stock jssue of JSC "Kurskaya Heal Nelwork Company” was provided on 17 February 2006

9
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TGC-A Group
Notes to the Consoclidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2008
(i thousands of Russian Raubles, Unless otheiwise dialad)

—— SN

Note 1. The Group and its operations {continued)

JBC "Smolenskleploenergoremont” was ragistered in October 2008, with the charlér capital of RR 1,000
thousand ta be paid in cash, In November 2008 the chatter capital was parlially paid up in the amouni of
RR 20 thousand, Naotification of the FFMS Regional Branch on the state registration of the securities’
issue and the reporl on the (esulls ol the stock ssue of JSC "Smolenskteplosnergoremont’ was provided
on 17 February 2008

Operating envirenment

The Russian Federation displays certmin charactenstics of an emerging market, including inconvertibility
of lhe Russian Rouble in mesl countres outside of the Russian Federation and relatively high inflation
Despite strong economic growth In recent years, Ihe financial situation in the Russian market significantly
deterioraled dunng 2008, particularly in the fourth quarter  As a result of glebal volatility In financial and
commodity markets, among other faclors there has baen a significant dealine In the Russian stock
market since mid-2008. Since Seplember 2008, thare has been increased volalility in currency markets
and tha Russian Rouble has depreciated significantly against some major currencies. The official US
Dollar xchange rate of the Cenlral Bank of (he Russian Foderation ("CBRF*) increased from RR 25.37 al
1 Oclober 2008 to RR 29 38 al 21 Decamber 2008

The tax, currency and customs legislation within the Russian Federation = subect o varying
interpratations and frequent changes. The fulure economic diraction of the Russian Federation s largely
dependant upon the effectiveness of economic, financial and monelary measures undertaken by the
Governmant, tagather with tax, legal, regulatory, and political developments, '

Management is unable to predict all developments in the sconomic environment which could have an
impact on the Group's operations and consequantly whal effect, if any, they could have an the financial
position of the Group

Relations with the State and current regulation

As 8l 31 Decembar 2007 the Russian Federation owned 52 7% of the voting shares of RAQ UES I ils
turn RAQ LIES owned 50.02% of tha viling ordinary sharas of TGC-4

In Juna 2008 RAD LIES's interest in TGC-4 dacreasad to 0% as a result of lhe sale of TG4 shares
awned by RAO UES lo ONEXIM HOLDINGS LIMITED

Tha Governmen| directlly affects the Greup's aparallons by regulating lts wholesale energy sales through
the Federal Service on Tanffs (“FST"), and ils retail sales of electricity and heat ihrough Regional Enerpgy
Commissions ("RECs")

The oparalions of all generaling facilities are coordinated by the System Operator of the Unifled Energy
System ('S0 UES") In arder ta mest systam requirements in a more efficient manner. Operations of S0
LES are controllad by the state.

Although certain valumes of electric power and capacity are traded al open prices, larilfs for major
volumes of electric and heal power sold by Group enlilies are governed by regulatians specific to the
electricity and heal generation and by regulalions applicable to natural monepolies. Historically, such
tariffs have been based on a "cost-plus” syslem, meaning cost of service plus B8 margin, where costs are
detarmined undar the Regulations on Accounting and Reporting of the Russian Federation, a basis of
accounting which significantly differs from International Financial Repoiting Standerds ('IFRS'). In
praclice, tarifl decisions ware impacted significantly by social and palitical considerations, causing
significant delays in tariff determinations and tarifl increases that were lower than reguired to
compearnsate for cost increases

Mg described in Notes 2 and 26, the Russian government's scanamic, social and oiher policies could
have g materal effect on the Group's operations,

Regulatory issuea and sector restructuring

The Russian alecinic utility in general and the Group in particular dre preseitly undergoing a reform
process designed lo Intraduce compelilion inlo (he eleclrially sector snel 1o creale an environment in
which energy companies (including TGC-4) can raise the capilal requirad to maintain and expand
cufrent capacity. On 28 June 2008 the changes to the Wholesale Eleciric Power (capacily) Markat Rules
of the Transition Period (NOREM) were approved by the Resolution of the Govermment of the Russian
Faderation No. 476. According lo these changes, startiing from 1 July 2008 capacily exceding he
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T6C-4 Group
Motes to the Consolidatod Financial Statements far the year anded 31 Decemiber 2008
{ir thousands of Russian Roubles, unlass otherwise stalod)

Notg 1. The Group and ils operations (continued)

regulated contracts, as well as thal af new input ganaranng capacitiss, (& raded at non regulated prices
on a whalesala markal

Accarding to the Resolulion of the Gavernment of the Russian Federalion, capasily can be traded i
sevaral ways, [ncluding by means of bilateral contracts for the sale of electiicity and capacily belween [ha
wholesale market participants. Thus, fram 1 July 2008 up o 25% of electicily could be sold at market
prices and the scheduls of the power marke! liberalization coincidas with that of the alectricily markel
liberalization approved by Resolulion of the Russian Governmenl No, 643, By 1 January 2011 the
schedule envisages that 100% of electncity and powar will ba sold at market prices

Note 2, Financial position

As al 31 Dacember 2008 (he Gioup's currant assels exceaded s cunenl liabillties by RR E.504 886
thousand which 12 axplained by the fact that certain parts of Ihe proceads recewved (fom the share
lmauance i 2008 were depnalted with banks (s at 31 Decambar 2007 the Groups currenl assals were
below s current liabilitiés by RR 591 522 thousand which {5 explained by fhe use of shart-lenm
horrowings 1o finance s mvestmants),

As described above, he Group Is affected by the Rusaian government's policy through control of tariifs
and olher factors, The FST has not always permitted larff increases in line with the Group's cosls and
thus some tariffs are insufficient lo cover sll the costs of generalion Moreaver, Increases n these larlifs
consider costs only on a Russian statutory basis and, accordingly exclude additional costs recognised
under the IFRS basis of accounting, As a resull. larilfs may nol consistently allow far an adequata return
an investment and curranily do not provide sufficient funds far the full replacement of property, plant and
equipmeant,

The existing economic situation of the world and Russian economies and 2 forecast decrease of GOP
may affect electricity consumplion Accordingly, the Governmeant of the Russian Federalion could reyise
its forecas! of socal-econamic development during 2009-2012 and that could result in changes (o the
terms of the liberalisation of wholesale markel and plans of electricity larlf indexalion as well as (he
timeline of the Group's investment program that was devised on the basis of electricity consumption
growth rate that is not achievable under current cireumstances.

Any change of terms of the wholesale market liberalisation and plans of eleclricity tarff indexation may
Influence the Group's revenues, Dabtors of the Group mey be adversely affecled by he financial and
economic environment which could in turm imipact their ability to repay the amounts owed.

Although thie Group's current collsctions of accounts recaivable 15 high shough, the Grodp continues o
experience difficullies in obtaining seltlements of accounts receivable parficularly, for heat sales the
majority of which are racelvables from housing and utilities enlities (Mote 11)  Also, (here still remains a
significant level of uncollactible accounts recelvable for heat sold in the penod prior to restructunng
There s legislation enabling the Group o tarminate service to delingueant customers, bul cartain stralegic
and political factors make this difficult  The Group has rmecognised impairment losses against doubiiul
gecounts receivable. as further described in Note 11

Currantly dacreasing demand for alacticity and hest due 1o the decling In the Russian economy may
have an adversa impact an the group’s operations and more tough borrowing terms and conditions may
affect Ihe ability of the Group ta oblain new borewings al terms similar o (hose applied to sarller
tfransactions  Detefiorating economic condibions for tha Group's customers may also have an impact on
managamenl's cash flow forecasls and assessment of the Impaiment of financial and non-financial
assels. To the extent that information s available, management believes that it has properly reflacted
revised estimates of expected futlura cash flows In Its assessment of possible impairment of assets (Note
8)

Management is unable 1o rehably determine the effects on the Group's future financial posiion of any
lurther deleriaration in the Group's operating environmen| a5 a resull of the ongaing orsis. Managamani
helievas It 15 taking all the NECEsaany measuras o ﬂllppﬁﬂ Thex sustamamllty and davéalopment of the
Group's business in the current circumstances, including arrangaments 1o imprave the Group's oparational
afficienty and afficiancy of |ls Investmant projects as wall ag measures to oplimize i|s costs, such as,

11
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TGC-4 Group
Notes to the Consolidated Finaneial Statemonis for the year ended 31 December 2008

{in thousands of Russion Roubles, unless olheiwise stated)

Note 2: Financial position (continued)
« Introduction of improved financial budgeting procediiras,

« discussions with stratagic investors, and enlificalion and assessment of projects requiring
invastment funds;

» nagoliations with federal and regional governments and regulatars for real increases in fariffa lo
supporl adéguate long-lerm investmant inlo the Group's énergy generalion sssels

Note 3. Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These consalidated financial statemants have been prepared In accordance with Interhational Financial
Reporting Standards ('IFRS") and related interpretations adopted by the International Accounting
Standards Board ("IASE"),

Each Group's entity individually maintains is own books ol accounts and prepares s statutory financial
statements In accordance wilh {he Ragulations on Accounting and Reporting of the Russian Federation
("RAR"). The accompanying financial statements are baged on the statutory records and adjdsted and
reclassified for the purpose of fair prasentation in sccordance with IFRS

The accounling policies have been consistently applied 1o all penods prasentad

Functional and presentation currency

The natienal currency of the Russian Federalion is the Russian Rouble ('RR%), which is the functional
currency of each of the Group's enlitieg and Ihe currency I which these hnancial stalements ara
prasantad. All financial Information presented in RR has baen rounded to the nearest thousand

Now accounting developments

Thesa financial statements have been prepared by applying the aceounting policies cansistent with those
g¢f the annual financial stataments for the year ended 31 Dacember 2007

Certaln new Interpratations became effective for the Group from 1 January 2008

« [FRIC 11, IFRS 2 *Group and Treasury Share Transactions” (effective for annual perods beginhing
on or after 1 Mareh 2007},

= |FRIC 12, "Service Concession Afrangements” (elfective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
danuary 2008), and

= |FRIC 14, IAS 18 “The Limit on a Datined Banafit Assef, Minimum Funding Regliraments and thair
Inleraction” (afective for annual periods beginning on or aftar 1 January 2008).

Thess interpretations did nof have any significant effect on the Group's cansolidaled financlal slalements

‘Reclassification of Financial Assels” Amendments to 1IAS 38, "Firancial Instiumeants Recognilion and
Meaasurement®, and IFRS 7. 'Financial [nstruments Disclosures and 8 subsequant amendmant
‘Reclassification of Financial Asseis. Effective Dale and Translton”, The amendmenls allow enlities the
options (a) to reclassity a financial assel out of the held for trading categaory If, 10 rare circumstances, the
assel s no longer held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term; and (b) to raclasaify
an available-for-sale asset of an asset held for trading to the loans and receivables calegory, if the entity
has the intenlion and ability to hald he financial assel for the foreseeable luture or until maturity (subject
to the assel sthatwise meeting tha delinition of loans and receivables), The amendmenls may be appliad
with retrospective affect from 1 July 2008 for any reclassifications made before 1 Novembar 2008, the
reclassificalions allowed by the amendments may not be applied before 1 July 2008 and refrospective
reclassifications are only allowed if made prior to 1 November 2008, Any reclassificalion of a finanaial
guse| made on or aftar 1 Novamber 2008 lakes effect anly from the date when [he raclassification s
made

The Group has nol electad to make any of the optional reclassifications during the pariod
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TGC.A Group
Notes to the Conaalidated Financial Statgmenis for the year ended 31 Docembar 2008
{in thousands of Russian Roubles, unless olhanwise stated)

Note 3, Basls of preparation (continued)

The lallowing naw standards, amandmants to slandards and Interpratations have beel ssued and are
effective Tor the linancial years beginiing aller 1 January 2009 and Rave nel besn early adapted

IFRS 8 “Oparating Segments” (effective for annual repoiming penods beginning on ar aftar 1 January
2009). The Standard applies to entites whose debt or aqulty Instruments are traded in a public
marketl or thal file, or are |n the pracess of filing, thein financial slalements willy & regulatory
arganigation far the purpose of ssuing any class of instruments in a public markel (FRS 8 requires
an anlily to report financial and descriptive information aboul its oparaling segments and specifies
how an entity should report such information  The Groop will apply the new standard from 1 January
2008 and is curenily assessing whal impact the new IFRS will have on Its consolidated financial
stataments.

Amandmant 1o IAS 23 "Borrowing Cost" (élfeclive lor borrowing coats relating to qualifying assels for

which he commencement dale for capitalisalion & on or alter 1 January 2009)  The revised IAS 23

was Issued in March 2008 The main change lo IAS 23 is the remaval of tha oplion of iImmediately
recognising as an expense borrowing costs fhat relate (o assets thal take & substantial period of lime
to gel ready for use or sdle. An entity 15, therefore, required 16 capitalise such bairowing cosls as pail
ol the cosl of the assel The revised standard applies prospectively to borrowing cosls relating to
qualifying assets for which the commencemeni date for capitalisation is on o afler 1 danudry 2000,
The Group iz cunently asgsessing the impact of (he amended standard on ifs consohdated financial
sfataments.

Amendment to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financlal Slatemants” (revised i Saptembier 2007, effactive (o
annual reparting penods beginning on or after 1 January 2000) The main change in [AS 1 & the
replacemant of the Income statement by a statement of comprehensive incame which will also
inelude all non-owner changes In equily, such as the revaluation of avallable-for-sale financial assets
Altarnativaly, antities will be allowed to present two staloments a separate income stalement and a
stalement of comprehensive Income. The revised IAS 1 also introduces g reglirement (o presenl a
stalement of Tinancial position (balance shesat) at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
whanaver the entity restales comparafives due o reclassilications, changes in accaunting pelicias, or
corfeclions of airors The Grcl.up expocts (ha revisad IAS 1 o affect the prasentalion of s
consolidated financial statements starting in 2008

Amendmant 16 |AS 32 and IAS 1, "Pultable Financial Instruments and Qbligations Ariging on
Liguidation” (effactive for annual penods beginning on or alter 1 January 2008) The amendment
requires classilication as equity of some linancial instrumeante that meet the dafinition of a financial
lability  The Group does nol expeci the amendmenl to affect lts consclidated financial statemeants

IAS 27, “Consolidated and Separale Financial Statements’ (revised January 2008, effective for
annual penods baginning on or after 1 July 2009). The revised IAS 27 will require an enlity to altribute
tolal comprehensive income lo the owners of Ihe parent and lo the pon-controlling Infarests
(proviously "minority intérests”) avan if this resulls in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance (the currant standard requlres the excess losses (o be allocated to the ownars of the parent
in mast cases) The revised standard spacifies that changes in @ parent's ownership interest In a
subsidiary that da notl resull in the loss of control must be aceounled far as aguily transactions. L
alsn specifies how an entity should measure any gain or loss arrsrng on the loss of coniral of &
subsidiary, At the date when confrol is lost, any Investment retained in the former subsidiary will have
o be measured al its fair value The Group is currenlly assessing lhe impact of lhe amanded
standard on its consolidated financial statements

Amendments to IFRS 2, "Share-based Payment Vesting Conditions and Cancellations” (effeclive for
annual pericds beginning on or after 1 Jandary 2003) The amendmeant deals with lwe maltars |l
clarifies thal vesting conditons are sevice conditions and performance conditions olly. Othe
fealures of & share-based paymonl are nol vesting conditions It also specilies that all canceliations,
whether by the entity or by othar parties. should receive tha same accounting treatment The Group
does not expedct the amendment to affect its consolldated linanckl statemeants

IFRS 3. "Business Combinallons” (revised January 2008, effeclive or business combinations for
which the acquisition data s on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on
or after 1 July 2000). Tha ravised IFRS 3 will allow entities to choose to measure non-controlling
interests using the existing IFRS 3 method (proportionale share of the scquiree’s identifiabla nat
assets) or al fair value The revised IFRS 3 is more detailed in providing guidance on [he application

13
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TGC-4 Group
Notes to the Consolidated Finangial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2008
(in thousands of Russian Roubles. unloss otherwise stated)

Nota 3. Basis of preparation {(continued)

of the acquisition method 1o busingss cambinations The requirement o maasura al 1air valua avary
assel and lability at each step fin & slep acguisition for the purposes of calculaling a portian of
goadwill has been ramoved. Instead, in a business combination achieved in stages, (he acquirer will
have to remeasure ts previously held equily interest in the acquires al its acquisition-dale fali value
and recognise the resulling gain or loss, if any in profit or |oss, Acquisition related costs will be
accounted for separately from the business combination and, therelore, recognized as expenses
rather than included in goodwill. An acguirer will have (o recognise al the acquisition date a liability for
any contingant purchase consideration Changes in the value of that liability aftar the acquisition date
will be recognised in accordance with other applicable IFRSs, as appropriate, rather than by adjusting
goodwill The revised IFRS 3 brings into its scope husiness combinations invelving only mutual
antities and business combinations achleved by contracl slone The Group will apply the new
standard to any business combination in 2010

s Amandment o IFRS 1 and I1AS 27 *Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Confrolled Enfity or
Associale” (ravised May 2008, affective for reporting perieds beginning on ar after 1 January 2008},
The amandment allows first-time adopters of |FRS ta measura investments (n subsidiares, joinlly
controlled entities of associales al fair value or al previous GAAP carrying value as deemad cost n
the separale Npancial statemaents. The amendmeant also requires dislributions from pre-doguisition nat
assels of nvestess to be recognised in profit or loss rather than as a racovery of the nvastment, Tha
amendments will nol have an impacl on the Group's consolidalad financial statemanis.

«  Amendment 1o IAS 39, 'Fipancial Instruments. Recognition and Measurement” (effective with
retraspective application for annual parieds beginning on or after 1 July 20089, with earlier application
parmitted). The amandment o 1AS 38 clarifies how the principles thal detarmine whather a hedged
risk or partion of cash flows is aligible for designation should be applied in particular situations. Tha
Group Is currently assessing the Impact of (he amendment on lts censolidated financial stalements

= |FRIC 13, "Customier Loyalty Programmes” (effectiva for annual periods beainning on ol after 1 July
2008y IFRIC 13 clarifies thal whare goods or services are gold logether with a customar loyally
incentive (for example, loyalty poinls or free products), the arrangement is a8 multiple-glameant
arrangement and the consideration receivable from the cuslomer |8 allocaled botween he
compaonents of the arangement using fair values The Group does nol operate any loyally
programmes.

= |FRIC 15, "Agreemenis for the Constniction of Real IZstale” (effective for annual perinds beginning on
ar after 1 January 2009) The interpretalion applies o he accounting foi revenia and associaled
expenses by antities that undertake the consiruction of real estate direcily or through subconliactars,
andl provides guidance for determining whather agreements for the construction of real estale are
within the scope of IAS 11 of IAS 18 1 glso provides criteria for delermining when entitias should
recognise revenue on such fransactions. IFRIC 15 (8 naot curfently relevant to tha Group's operations
because il doas not have any agreemenls for the cons{ruction of real estate,

« |FRIC 16, "Hedges of a Nel Investment in a Foreign Operation” (effective for annual periods
beginning on ar after 1 Colaber 2008). The interpretation explains which cumency nsk exposures are
cligible for hedge accounting and states that translation from the funclional currency to the
presantation currency does not areate an exposuré (o which hedyge accounting could be applied. The
IFRIC allows the hedging instrumeni to ba held by any enlity or entities within a group excepl (he
foreign operation hal lisell s being hedgad, The interpretdation alse clanlies how the gain of bss
racycled from the currency translation reserve to profit or loss js calculated on disposal of the hadged
foreign operation Reporting entilies will apply IAS 38 lo disconlinue hedge accounting prospectively
when their hedges do not meel Ihe criteria for hedge acoounting In IFRIC 16 The Graup 18 currently
assessing e impact of the amended standard on ils consalidated linancial slatemenls

= |FRIC 17, "Distribution of Non-Cash Assets 1o Owners" (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2008, wilh sarller application permitted} The Interpretation clarflies whan and how
distribution of non-cash assets gs dividends (o (he owners should be recognised. An antity should
measire a liability (o dislribute hon-cash assels as a dividend 1o its owners al the fair value of the
assets o be distributed. A gain or lass on disposal of the distribuled non-cash assets will be
recogriiged In profit or loss when the antity setlles (he dividend payable The Group will apply IFRIC
17 11t distributes nan-cash assets (o owners in the fulure
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TGC-4 Group
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2008
(in thousands of Russian Roublies, upless otharwize stoled)

Note 3. Basis of preparation {continued)

IFRS 1. "Firsl-tima Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards” (effectivie for the first
IFRS financlal statemants 1o a penod Beginning on of after 1 July 2009), The revised IFRS 1 retains
the substance of its previous varsion buf within a changed structure (n order 1o make I gasiar lor the
reader to understand and t© betler accommodate future changes, The Group concluded thal the
revised standard does not have any effect on its consolidated financial statements

Tha amendments to the IFRSs which ara the part of the 1ASBE's annual improvements project
publishad in May 2008 are effective from 1 January 2008 In 2007, the Intermational Accounting
Standards Board decided lo inifiate an annual improvements project as a method of making
necessary, but non-urgent, amendments to IFRS The amendmants issued in May 2008 consist of a
mixlure of subsiantive changas, clarifications and changas in lerminalagy in various standards. The
substantive changes relate (o the following areas classification as held for sale under IFRS 5 in case
of a loss of conlrol ovar a subsidiary, possibilily of presentation al financial nstiuments hald for
trading as non-current under [AS 1, accaunting for sale of 1AS 16 assals which were previcusly held
for rental and classificalion of the relaled cash Hows under IAS 7 as cash flaws from operaling
activities, clariflication of definiton of a curtallmant under IAS 19, accounting for below market intarast
rate govermmant loans i accordance with |AS 20, making the definition of borrowing costs in 1AS 23
consistent with the effeclive interest mealhod, clanficalion of aceounting for subsidiaries held for sale
under IAS 27 and IFRS 5; reduction In the disciosure reguirements relating lo associalas and joinl
vanlures under 1AS 28 and 1AS 31, anhancement of disclosures requirsd by IAS 36, clarllication of
aceounting for advariising costs undar |AS 38, amending the definition of the fair value through profit
or loss category to be consistent with hedge accounting under 1AS 39; intraduction of accounting for
Investment properies under consiruction In accardance wilh IAS 40, and reduction in restnctions over
mannar of determining fair value of biological assats under AS 41 Furthar amendimants mada ta IAS
8,10, 18, 20, 28, 34, 40, 41 and o IFRS 7 represent terminology or editorial changes only. which the
IASH balieves have no or mnimal effect on accounting The Group does not expect the amendments
o have any material affect on |is consolidated financial statemenis.

On 18 Apil 2009 the |ASE issued "Improvements o IFRSs", a colleclion of amendments (o 12
standards as part of its program of annual improvements. The latest amendments were includad in
axposure drafts published in Octaber 2007, August 2008 and Jenuary 2009 Most of the amendments
are effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2010, The Group is assessing the
impact of those pichouncemants on i consolldated financial stataments.

IFRIC 18, “Transfers of Assals from Cuslomers” (affective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2009), The intarpretation clarifies the accounting for transfers of assets from customers, namely,
the circumstances in which the definitian of an assel |8 mat the recognition of the assel and the
measurement of i1s cosl on Inltlal recognitian: the (dentification of the separalely Identifidble sepvices
(one or mare servicas in exchange for the transferred asset) the recognition of revenue, and {he
accounting for lransfers of cash from cuslomers IFRIC 18 js not expecied to have any impact on the
Group's consalidated financial statements

Improving Disclosures about Financal Instrumenta - Amendmant (o [FRS 7, "Financial Instruments
Disclosures” (issued in March 2008; effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009) The amendment requirgs anhanced disclosures aboul fair value measurements and liguidity
risk. The entity will be required to disclose an analysis of financial mstruments using a thrae-level fair
value measuremert hierarchy The amendment (&) clarifles that the matunty analysis of liabilities
should inolude issued financial guarantee conlracts al the maximum amount of the guaraniee in the
earliest period In which tha guarantes could be aalled, and (b) requires disclosuie of remaining
contractual maturites of financial denvatives if the contractual maturities are essental for an
understanding of the timing of ihe cash flows. An entity will further have lo disclose a maturily
analysis of financial assels it holds for managing liquidity risk, if that information s pecessary o
enable users of I1s financial statements to evaluata the nature and extent of liquidily sk The Gioup
15 currently assassing the impact of (he amendmanl on disclosures iny its consolidated financial
statemanls

Amendments lo IFRIC 9 and |AS 39 "Embedded Derivalives " (effective fai annual periods anding o
of alter 30 June 2009) The amendments clarily thal on reclassificalion of a financial assal cul of (ha
“al fair value through profii or loss" category, all embedded derivatives have [o be assessed and_ il
necessary, separately accounted for. The Group is currently assessing the impast al the amandineni
on disclasuras in s consalidated financiel statements,
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TGC4 Group
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Decamber 2004

(in thousands of Russian Roubles, unless otharwise stated)

Nate 3. Basis of preparation (continued)

«  On 9 July 2009 |ASE issued an International Financial Reporting Standard designed for use by small
and medium-sized enlilies (IFRS for SMEs) IFRS for SMES simplified many of (he principles of full
IFRS for recognising and measuring assets, |abilities income and expanse, and the number of
required disclosures have bean simplified and significantly reduced IFRS far SMEs s not applicable
for the Group's operations

Golig concern

The accampanying consolidated financial statemeants have been prepared on a going eoncerm bEss,
which contemplates the realization ol assels and the salisfaction of liabilities n the normal coursa of
husiness. The recoveralbiility of the Group's assels, as well as the future operations of the Group, may be
significantly affected by the current and future economic anvironment, The accompanying finanoial
statements do nol include any adjustmants should the Group be unable o continua as @ going concerm.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts recognised In the financial
statements and the carrying amounts of assels and labilities within the next financial year. Estimatas and
|udgements are continually evaluated and are based on management's experience and other factors
including expectalions of future events thal are belleved 1o be reasonable undar the circumslances
Management also makes cerain judgemaonts, apart from those involving estimations in the process of
applying the accounting palicles. Judgements (hat have the most signiticant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements and estimates that can cause a significant adjustiment to the
carrying amount of assets and labiilies within the next financial year include:

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost

Impairment is recognised as a result of the Group's assessment of whether the collectability of specific
guslomer accounis deterioraled compared lo prior estimales, The primary lactors that the Group
conhsiders in determining whether a financial assat is impared are (ts overdue status and realisability of
related collaletal, If any. The following other principal crileria are also used lo dalarming whather there is
objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred:

=« any portion or instaiment 1s ovardue and the late payment cannol be attributed o a delay caused by
the settlement systems,

= (ha counterparty experiences a sigmicant findancial difficully as evidenced by s financial infermation
that the Group abtains,

= tha counterparly cansiders bankruptoy or a financlal recrganisation;

« thera |s adverse change in the payment status of the counterparty as a resull of changes in the
national or local economic canditions thal impact the countarparty, or

= tha value of collataral, it any, significantly decreases as a resull of deteriorating market conditions

It conditions change and management datermines that the collectabllity of accounts teceivable has
improved, the impairment 15 fully or partially reversed, See effect of these crilical accounling estimates
and assumplions in Note 11

Impairment of non-financial assets

Al mach reporting date managemenl assasses whether tharé s any indication of impairment of proparty,
plant and equipment. If any such indieation exists, managament estimates the recoverabla amount. which
|s datermined as the highar of an assel's Tar value less cosls to sell and ils valug in bse. The sarmying
amount 18 reducad ta the recoverable amount and the impairment [pas g recognised in He ipcame
statement 1o the exienl || exceads the previous revaluation suiplus n equily. An impairment loss
recognisad lor an asset in prior years s reversed 1f there has baen a change in the astimates used 1o
datarming the asset's value In use or Eir value less costs (o sell

Accounting for Impairment Includes impairments of propery, plant and equlpment, Invastments i
assooiates and inventory obsalescence,

See eftect of thase crtical accounting estimates and assumptions In Note 5, 8 10
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Note 3, Basis of preparation (continued)

Provisions for Habilities and charges

The Group acciues pravision for legal proceedings when its assessments indicate that i is prabable that
a lability has bean incurred and an ameunt can be reasonably estimaled The Group's estimates for
provisiony for liabilities and charges are based on currently available facts anpd Ihe Group's eslimalas of
the ultimate oulcomea or resolution of the liability in the futura

See effact of these critical accounting estimates and assumptions In Note 26

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment

Falr value of property, plant and aquipmant and the ramaining uselul ife of praperty, plant and eguipmeant
of the Group companies have been defermined by Independent appraisars as at 1 January 2007 The
carrying value and depreciation of properly, plant and equipment are affecled by the eslimales of
feplacement cosl, depieciated replacement cosl and remaining uselul lives, Changes in ihese
assumptions could have a matenal impact to the fair value of proparty, plant and equipment (see Nala 8)

Usetul lives of property, plant and equipment

The estimation of the useful lives of an item of property, plapt and equipment 15 a maiter ol management
Judgment based upon experiegnce with similar assets  In determining the useful life of an assel
managemant considers the expected usage, eslimated technical absalescance, physical wear and laar
and the physical environment in which the asset is operated, Changes in any of these condilions or
estimates may resull in adjusimeanis for fulure depragialion rates which can affect ihe reporied ihcome
See affact of these crilical accounting estimates and assumptions in Nole 8

Tax contingencies

Russian 1ax leqisialion s subject 1o varying interpretations and changes, which can occur frequently
Whare the Group managemant believas il 15 probabla thal then intarpretation of the relevant legislation
and the Group's tax pasitions cannot be sustained, an appropriate amount s accrued for i these IFRS
financial statements. See effect of these critical accounting estimates and assumplions in Nole 26

Note 4, Summary of significant accounting policies
Principles of consolidation

a) Subsidiaries

Subsidianes are those companes and other enfiies which the Group, diregtly or indirectly, has an
interest of more than one hall of the voting righla or olherwise haa power lo govern the linancial and
aparaling policies so as 1o eblain benefits The existence and effect of potential vating rights (hat aro
prasently exercisable or prasently convertible are considerad when assessing whether the Group conlrols
anothar enlity. Subsidiaries are consolidaled from the date on which contiol 5 ransferred (o e Groyp
(acquisilion date) and are deconsclidated from the date thal control ceases

The purchase method ol accounting 1s used to accourit ler the acquisition of subsidiaties other than those
acqgulred lrom parties undel common control The casl of an acguisition is measured at the fair value of
the assets given up, eguily instruments ssued apd labilitizs incurred or assumed al the date of
exchange, plus costs directly attributable lo the acquisitlon. The dale of exchange (s the acquisition dale
whare a busingss combinalion 18 achieved in a single transaction, and is the date of each share purchasa
whare a businesa combinalion is achieved in stages by succassive share purchases

Tha oxeass of the cost of acqulsition aver the acquirer's share of the falr value of the nel assels of lha
acguires al each exchange lransaction is recorded as goodwill The excess of the acquiier's interast in
the net fair value of the idenfifisble assols, liabilihes and contingent liabiltes scquirad aver cost
( negative goodwill") is recounised immediataly in profit of loss

ldentiliable assels acquired and liabllities and contingant labillies assuined in 3 business cambinalion
are measured at their fair values at the acquisition date irrespective of the extant of any minanty inferes
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Note 4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Minarity interast is that pan of the nal resulls and of the nel assets of a subsidiary atlnbutable to mterests
which are nal owned directly of indireclly, by the Company Minoritly Interest forms a separate
component af the Group's equity,

Transactlons eliminated an consolidation

intercompany rransactions, balances and unrealised gains on transaclions batwaen group companies are
aliminated: unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the cosl cannol be racovered. The Company and
all of ts subsidiaries use uniform accounting palicies consistent with the Group's policies

Purchases of subsidiaries from parties under common conlrol

Purchases of subsidiaries fram parties under comman control are accounted for Using the predecessor
values method. Under this method the consolidated financial statements of the combined entity are
presented as [ (he businesses had been combined from tha beginting of the earliest period prasentad of,
if later, 1he date whan the combining entities were first brought under comman contral The assets and
llabilities of the subsidiary lransferred under common contral are al the predecessor enlity's carrying
amounts, The predecassor entity (s cansiderad to be tha highest reporting entity in which the subsidiary's
IFRS fihancial information was consolidated Related goodwlll inhérent in the predecessor entity's arigingl
#cquilsilions is also recordad i Ihese consolidated financial statements. Any difference betwaen the
carrying amount of net assels, including the predecessor antity's goodwill, and the oonsidaralion for the
acquisition 1s accounted for in these consolidated financial stalements as an adjustment 1o inerger
reserve within aquity

b) Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has signihcant mfluence (direally of indirectly) bul nol
control, genarally accompanying a shareholding of betwean 20% and 50% of the voling rights.
Investments In associales are accounted for by {he eguily method of accounting and are initially
recognised al cost The carrying amoun! of associates includes goodwill identified on acquialtion less
accumilated Impairment osses, If any. The Group's shaie of lhe post-acquisition profils of losses of
associalaes |8 recorded in the consolidated income stalernent and its share of post-acquisition
movements (n resarves s recognised In reserves When the Group's share of josses in an associate
equals ar exceeds its interast in the assoclate, Including any other unsecurad reseivables, the Group
does nol recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligalions or made payments on behall of the
assadiaté

Unrealised gainz on transactions belween the Group and its associales are efiminated to he extent of he
Group's interest in the associales, unrealised |osses are alse eliminated unless the transaction provides
avidence of an iImpairment of the assel ransfarred

Foreign currency

Monetary asgels and liabilities, which are held by the Group entities and denominated 0 foregn
currencies at the balance sheet date are lranslated into R al the exchange rates prevailing al thal data,
Foreign currency lransactions are accounled for al the exchange rales prevaling st the dale of the
trangaclion, Gains and losses resulling fram the sattiemant of such transaclions and from (he transiation
af manelary asssts and liabilities denominated in ferelgn currencies are racognised in income statemant

The exchange rales prevalling as al 31 December 2008 as determined by he Central Bank of the
Rissian Federation, betwaen the RR and the US Daollar ("USD") was RR 293804 USD 1.00 (as al 31
December 2007 RR 24.5462: USD 1.00), belween the RR and ELURD RR 41 4411 EURO 1 00 (as at 31
Degember 2007 RR 359332 EURO 1.00)

Property, plant and equipmeant

Starting from 1 Jandary 2007 the Grodp changed ts azcouniing policy for property, planl and edqulprsnt
which are now stated at revalued amount less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulaled impalrmeant losses The revalualion madel is appliad in relalion to all classes of PPE axcepl
for the following clesses of fixed assals communicalions, motor vehicles, cornputer, insfruments, Gols,
measuring equipment, other machinery, Those classes of PPE are measured at cosls less accumulaled
depreciation and accumulated impairmen)
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Note 4, Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Prior (o 1 January 2007 property, plant and aguipment ware sigted at cosi [ess accurnulatied depreciabian
less accumulaled impairment losses. As of the beginning of 2005 praperty, plant and equipment were
stated al the carmying value determined in accordance with the IFRS at the date of their lransfer o [he
Group by the Predecessor entity. Deemed codt was [nitially determinad by & Ihird parly valuation al 37
Detembear 1897 and restated for the impact of inflation until 31 December 2002 Adjustmenls wers mades
for additions, disposals and depreciation charges.

Al each reporting date management assesses whether thera |s any Indication of impairmant ol property,
plant and squipment, Ifany such Indication exisis, management estimates (he recaverable amount, which
is detarmined as the higher of an assel's fair value less costs o sell and ils value in use The carrying
amount is reduced o the racoverable amounl and the impairment loss Is recognised In the income
statement fo the extent | exceeds the prévious revaluation surplus in aquity, An impairmaent loss
recognised for an asset in prior years |s reversed If there has been a change in the estimates used o
determine the asset's valie In use or fair value less costs 1o sell,

Praparty, plant and equipment are subject to ravaluation oh a regular basis The frequency of revaluation
depends upon the movements in the fair values of the assats being revalued.

Incremses i1 the carrying amount arlsing on revaluation are credited fo revaluation reserve i equity.
Decreases that offset previous increases of the sami asset are charged agalnst revalualion reserve directly
in equity. all other decreases dre charged lo the consalidated incoma statemenl.  The ravalualion resarve in
aquily Is Iranaferred direclly 1o retained earmings  when the sbrplus is realised ether on lhe relirement o
disposal of the assel or as the assel 12 used by the Group; in the latter case. the amount of the surplus
realised 2 the difference between depracialion based on [he revalled carrying amaunt of the assel and
depreciation based on the asset's onginal cos!

Whan an item of property, plant and equipment was revalued, any accumulated depreciation al the dale
of Ihe revalualion was sliminaled against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount was
restated lo the rmevalued amount of the asset.

Furthar acquisitions pf property, plant and aquipmeant betwaen revalualions are racogrized at their actual
cost

Renewals and improvements are capilalized and the assels replaced arg retied. The cosl of repalr and
maintenance are expensed as incurred (Gains and loses ansing from the retirement of property, plant and
aquipment are (ncluded in the Income statement as Incurrad.

Galn or lpss frem sale or other retirement of properly, plant and equipment ig determined as the
diffarance belween the sales procoeds and book value and s récogmzed in the ncame stalemant,

Prepayments

Prapayments are carmed al cost less provision for impairment. A prepayment 1s classified as non-ourmant
when the goods or sarvices relating o tha prapayment are expectad o be oblained alter ane year, o
when the prepayment relates to an assel which will (tsell be classified as non-current dpon initial
r@nbgnllinn Fr&paymfnnts lo acquire assals are transterred o thae carryling amaount af the asset once he
Group has abtained control af the assal and il is probable [hal fulure economic banafils #ssociated with
the assat will flow te the Group

Depreciation

Land 15 not depreciated Depreciation of property, planl and aguipment 1s ealculated on & straight-ine
basis avar thi estimated useful life af the assel when It s avallable for use

Usaful lives af proparty, plant and sguipmant are subject 1o annual assassmenl by manageman! and Il

expactations diffar from pravious estimates, the changes of useful lives are accountad for as a changs in
an accounting estimate prospactively
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Note 4, Summary of significant accounting policies [continued)

In 2008 the depreciation on prapany, plant and egquipment was based on the followng uselul ives in
yaars

Acquired prior to Acquired subsequent to
Type of tncility 31 Decembor 2006 31 Pecember 2006
Elecincity and heal generation 454 B.32
Elaciricily distribulion 328 B-21
Haating networks 338 525

Db 1-63 3.28

Intangible assots

The Group's intangible assels have definite useful lives and primarily include capitalised compuler
software and |icenses, Intangible assels are staled al cosl, adjusted for subsequent disposal,
amortization and impeirment,

Amortization of intangible assets is calculaled on a straight-line basis over lhe shorler of useful life of
validity period af legal rights

The usatul ves in years of assets by type are as follows:

-Typa Uselul liuﬁﬂ
Computar softwara 1-10
Licaiiges 18

Il Impairad, the canying amount of intangible @ssels is wiilten down (o the higher of value In use and falf
value less costs (o sell

Goodwill

Goodwil| repragents the excess of the cost of an acquisinon over the fair value of the acquirer's share aof
the nel idanlifiable assets, liabilties and eonlingent liabilites of the acquired subsidiary ar assoclate at lhe
date of exchange Goodwill on acquisiions of subsidiaries is presented separately In the consolidatad
balance sheel Goodwill on acguisifions of associales 15 included in the Invesimenl in associates
Goodwill Is carriad al cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any

The Group lesls goodwill for impairment at least annually and whenever here dre \ndications (hal
gnquill may be impaired Goodwill 8 gllocated 1o the cash-generaling units, ar groups of cash-
generating units, thal are expecled 1o benefil from the synergies of the business combination. Such units
ar groups of units represant the lowest level at which the Group monitors goodwill and are not larger than
4 segment Gains or losses on disposal of an operation within a cash generaling unil lo which goodwill
has been allocaled include the carrying amount of goodwill assoclated with the operation disposed of
generally measurad on the basis of the relative values of the operation disposed of and the partion of the
cash-genarating unit which is retainad.

Financial assets

a) Classification of financial assets

The Group classilies its linancial assets In the lollowing calegories: loans and (eceivables and available-
for-sale. The Group doaes nol have any financial assets held-te-maturity and financial assets al fair value
through profit or logs The classification depends on tha purposa for which the financial assets wera
acquired. Managemant detarmines the classilication of 18 inanchl assets al iniflal recognition

Loans and recaivables are non-darivative financial assals with lxed or determinable payments hat ara
nat guotad In an active market They are included in current assets, except for maturties grealer than 12
monthg after the balance sheel dale. These are clasaified as non-current assels. The group's loans and
receivables comprise "trade and olher receivables” and cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheael
(Notes 11 and 13),

Available-ter-sale financial assels are non-dervatives that are aithar designated in this category or not
clagsified In any of the other calegornes They are included in non-gurrenl assets unless managamern
intencs to dispose al the investment wilhin 12 months of the balance shesat date (Note )
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Note 4, Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

b) Recognition and measurement

Financial assets are intially recorded at fair value plus transaclion costs Far value at inibal recognition 15
best evidenced by lhe transaction price. A gain or loss on inllial recognliion is only recorded if (hera is &
difference between fair value and Irensaction price which ¢an be evidenced by olher observable currant
markel lransactions in the same nstiument or by 2 valualion lechnigye whose inputs inolude only dals
from obsarvable markets,

All purchases and sales of financial assels (hal require delivery within the time frame established by
ragulation or market convention ("regular way" purchases and sales) are recorded at trade date, which is
the date that the Group commits to deliver a linancial asset. All ather purchases are recognised when the
entily becomes a parly o the contractual provisions of the insfrumeant,

The Group uses discounted cash flow valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial assets
that are not fraded in an active market,

The Group derecognises financial assets when (a) the assets are redeemed or the rights to cash flows
from the assets otherwise expired or (b) the Group has transferred the rights fo the cash flows from the
linancial assels or enlered into a qualllying pass-through arrangement while (1) also transferiing
substantially all ihe jisks and rewards of ownership of he assale or () naithar transferning nor retalning
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership but pot retaining conlral Control s retained 1 the
sounterpanty does nol have the practical ability ta sell the assel In [ts entirety to an unrelated third parly
without needing 1o Impose additional restrictions on [he sale.

Impairmant losses ane recognised in profit or loss when incurred as a result of ona or more events {"loss
events”) thal ocourred afler the initial recognition of avallable-for-sale investiments, A sigrificant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an equily security below ils cost 18 an indicator that || s Impalred,
The cumulative impalrment loss = measured as the difference between lhe acquisition cost and (he
current fair value, less any mmpairment loss on that asset previously recognised in profit of loss - I3
remaved from equily and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment lossas on aquily instruments are pol
reversed through profit or loss. Il In a subgequent period, the fair value of a debl instrument classified as
avallable for sale Increases and he Increase can be objectively related to an evenl ocourring after (he
impairment loss was racogrised in prafil or loss, the impairment |o3s s reversed (hrough cuirent period s
profitor loss,

Cash and cash squivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents Include cash m hand, deposits held st call with banks, and olhar shorl-larm
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three manths or less. Cash and cash equivalenis are
carrled af amarised cost using the effective interast methad

Inventory

Inventories arg rocorded at the lowar of casl and nel realizabla value Cosl of fuel 5 delermingd on he
weighted average basis, for other groups - spacilic identification of the individual costs

Net realisable value 18 the estimated saling price in the ordinary course of business, less the cost of
completion and selling expenses

Value added tax on purchases and sales

Outpul VAT relatad lo sales is payable o federal lax authorilies on the earller of (a) eollection of the
recelvables from custormers or (b) dellvery of the goods or services to customers. Inpul YAT 1s genarally
recovarable against output VAT upon recaipl of goods and services and the VAT invoice

The tax aulhorities allow to offset VAT, VAT relatad to sales and purchases (s facognised In the balance
shaet on 8 gross basis and disclosed separately as an assel and liability. Where provision has bean
madea for impairmant of receivables, impairment loss s recarded foi the gross amount of the debtor,
including VAT
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MNote 4. Summary of significant accounting policies (Corntinued)

Trade and other receivable

Trade receivables are recognisad injtially af fair value and subsequently measured al amorfisad cosl
using the effactive ilefesl method, less impaliment. An impairment of lrade recaivables is established
when there is objective avidence that (he group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to tha
original terms of the recelvables Significant financial difficullies of the debtor, probability that the debtor
will enter bankruptoy or financial recrganisation, and defaull or delinquency in payments (more than 30
days overdue) are consideiid Indicators that the rade receivable s impaired

Tha ameount of the Impairmant Is the diferepce batween the asset's carrying amount and the prasenl
value of estimated fulure cash flows, discounted al the onginal effective ntarest rate The carrying
amaunt of the assel is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount o (he loss |s
recagnisad in the ihcome statement within "operaling expenses’ Il in a subsequent pariod tha amounl of
the Impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an even| ocourring alter the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debter's cradit rating), the previously
recognisad impairment loss |8 reversed by adjusting the allowance accaunt through profit of loss,

When a trade recalvable s uncollactible, It Is wrilten off aganst he allowance account for trade
recewables. Subsequent recoveries of amounls previously wrilten off are credited against 'operaling
expenses’ in the income statemenl.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are acorued when the counterparly parfarms its obligations undar the confract
and are carrled al amortised cosl using the effective Interest methed. Trade and olher payables are
slaled Inclusive of value addad (ax

Provislons for liabilities and charges

PFrovisions for llabilities and sharges are non-financial habilities of uncerain timing or amount, They are
accruad when the Group has a presant Iegal or constructive obligation ag a resull of past avents, It Is
probable that an outflow ol resources embodying ecanamic benefits will be requirad to setfle the
obligation, and a rellable astimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Guarantecs

Financial guaranteas are conlracts whare the Group 15 required 1o maka payments to reimbursa a lender
when a specific deblar falls 1o make payment whan due h accordance with a debl Ingtrument Financial
guaraniee contracts 1ssued by tha enlity are nitially accounted for al fair value Falr value is detarmined
using the Interest rate differentials method, which provides a sultable basis for estimalting the fair value of
gquarantees. Under this mathod the (2 value of guarantee represents the difference in the present value
of the interest payments charged on the guaranteed loan and whal would have bean charged had (he
loan not been guarmntesd over the petlod of (ha guarantea This amount s amartisad an a stralaht ling
basis over the life of the guarantee. Financial guarantess are subsequently measured at the higher of (i)
lhe ramaining unamortised balance of the amount at Initial recognition and (i) the besl estimate of
expenditura required to settle the obligation at the balance sheat date.

Debt

Borrowings are recognised jnitially al fair value, net ol liansaclion coals incurred, Bormowings sre
subsequently staled al amortised cost, any differapce belween the proceads (nil of transaction tosts)
and the redemption value is recognised in the income sjatemeni over the perjod of the borrowings using
the effectiva inlerest method,

Borrowing cosls

Fror to 1 January 2008, the Group recognised all borrowing cosls as an expense in the pericd n which
they are incurred,
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Note 4. Summary of significant acocounting policies {continuod)

Penglon and post-employment benefits

In thie normal course of business the Group contributes to the Russian Federation defined conlribution
state pension schema on behall of Ite employees. Mandatory contributions to the governmental pansion
schetme are expensed when nourred and included in employee benelt expenses and payrmll faxes in lhe
Income statement

The Group's entilies operate defined benefit plans. Benefit plans define the amounl of pensian penefil
thal an employee will recedve on relirement, usually dependeni on one or more faclofs such as age, years
of sarvice and compensation Tha liability racognised in the balance sheal in respect of defined banefit
pension plans operated by the Groyp is the present value of the defined benefit cbligation at the balance
sheel dale less Ihe far value of plan assets, fogether with adjustrments for unrecagnised acluanial gains
or logses. The defined bensfil cbligations are calculated using the projecled unit credit method The
prasent value of the defined banafit obligations are determined by discounting the eslimaled fulure cash
autflows using nlerest rates of government bonds that are denominated n the curmeney in which he
benefits will be paid associaled wilh he operalien of the plans, @nd hal have lerms @ mallnty
approximating the terms of the related pension Labililies

Actuanal gains and losses ansing from experience adjustments and changes in actuanial assumpnons n
excess of (he grealer of 10% of the value of plan assets or 10% of the defined benefit obligations are
chargad or cradited o the jncome statement over the employees’ expecied average ramaining working
llyias

Pansion plans are qualified as unfunded plans, Therefora, the balancas In the pension accounts of (he
Fund shall be accounted In the balance shaet within the pen-current assels as a separate assel (Note )

Current and deferred income lax

Incoma taxes have been provided for in the inancial statements in accordance with legislalion enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheel date The income lax charge camprises current tax and
deferred fax and |s recognised In the income statement excepl if It 15 recognised direclly In equily
becausa || relates to transaclions Ihal are also recognised, in the same o a different period, directly in
agLity,

Current lax is the amounl expected o be paid 1o or recovered from the tazalion aulhorities in respact of
laxable profits or losses for the current and prior penods. Taxes other than on income ara recorded within
aparaling expenses,

Deforrad Income 1ax s provided using the balance sheat liabilily method o tax loss carry forwards and
tampoarary differences arising between |he tax bases of assats and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes. In accordance with the Initial recognilion exemplion, dafermed taxes are
net recorded for temporary differences on initial recognition of an asset or a hability in a transaction olher
than a business combination if the ransaction, when Initially recorded, affecls neither accounting na
taxable profil. Deferrad lax balances are measured a8l tax rates enacted or subslantively anacted af the
balance sheet date which are expected to apply to Ihe period when the lamporary differences will ieverse
ar the [ax loss carry lorwards will be Ulllised. Deferred tax assals and liabiliies are netted only within (he
individual companies ol the Group Deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences and tax loss
cany lorwards are recorded anly to the extent that il is probable thal future laxable profit will be avallable
aganst which the deductions can be utilised

The Group controls reversal of temporary diffierences relahing to laxes chargaable on dvidapds from
subsidiarias or on gains al thair disposal. The Group does nol recognise deferred lax liabilities on such

temporary differences éxcepl o Ihe extent that Managemenl expects the lemporary diffarences to
feversa in tha foreseeaable future,

Tha Greup's uncertain lex positions are reassessed by managemend al every balance sheaol date
Liatlities are recorded for income tax positions thal are determinad by managemant as more likely 1han
nat o resull in additional taxes being levied if the positions were 1o be challenged by the tax authorities.
Tha assassmenl is based on lhe interpretalion of lax laws thal have been enacled o substantively
enacted by the balance shaet date and any known court ar other rulings on such issues. Liabilies Tor
penalties, interest and taxes ather than on Income are recognised based on management's beat estimate
of the expenditure raquired lo settle ihe abligalions at (he balance sheel date
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TGE4 Group
Notes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 Decembor 2008
tin thousands of Russian Roublas, unless otheiwise alated)

Note 4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue |5 recognisad on the delivery of alectncity, capacily and heat dunng the period Revenues are
measured at the fair value of consideralion recalved or receivable Revende amounts gre lepresentad
exclusive of value addad tax

Operating leases

Wheare the Group 15 o lesses g lease which does not irapsfer substantially all the risks and rewsdrds
incidental to ownership from the lessor (o the Group, the [otal lease paymenls are charged to profit or
loss on a stralght-line basis over the lease lerm The lease tarm is the non-cancellable pariod for which
tha lassee has confracled to lease the assel together with any further terma for which the lessea has the
option to cantinua to lsage the assel, with or without further paymant, when al the inceplion of the laase il
15 reasenably certain that the lessee will exercise the oplion

When assets are leased out under an cperating lease, the lease payments recelvable are racognised as
rental income on a straighl-line basis over the lease term

Financial leases

Where the Group 15 a lessea 1n a lsase which transferred substantially all the riaks and rewards (ncldental
to ownership to the Group, the assats leased are capitalised in propery, plant and equipment af the
commencement ef the lease al the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and Ihe presen! value of the
minimum lgase paymenis, The carresponding rental abligaliens, nel of future financa charges, are
included in debts. Each lease payment is allocated between the hability and finance charges so as {o
gchieve a constant rate on the finance balance oulstanding.

The Inlerest cost is charged o the [ncome slatement aver the lease period using the effective interasi
mathod. The assels acquired under finance leases are dopreciated over thelr uselul 1fe or the shorter
lease tarm if the Group I not reasonably cartain thal it will obtain awnership by the and of the leasa e,

Government grants

Girants fram the govarnmenl! are recagnised at their falr value where thera s a reasonable asauranhce that
the grant will be recewved and the Group will comply with all attached conditions

Govarnment granis relating to cosis am defarred and recognised in 1he income statement over the penod
necassary (o match them with the costs thal they are infended o compensata. They are presanted in the
income statement under a general heading such as "other operating inceime”

Treasury shares

Where the Company or 115 subsidianes purchase the Company & squity instruments, the consideration
paid, including any directly atlributable incremental cosls, net of income laxeas, s daeducted from aguily
altributable 1o the Company's equity holders untll the equltly Instrumants are cancelled, ressuead or
disposed of Where such shares are subsaquently sold or reissuad, any considaralion receivad, net of
any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income lax effects, |5 hcluded in
aquity attribulable 1o the Company's aquity holders

Dividends

Dividends are recognized as a lability and deducted from equity at the balance sheet date anly if they are
declared and approved by shareholders before or on the balance sheel date. Dividands are disclosed
whan they are declared afler the balance shaet date, but before the financial statements are authorized
for lssue

Earnings per share

The eamings per share are delerminad by dividing the profit attribulable 1o ordinary shareholders of he
parent campany of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares sulstanding during the
reporting periad Preference shares are not redeemable and are considered (o be paticipating shares.
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TGC-4 Group
Notes to the Conzolidated Financial Statemenis for the yoar ended 31 Docombeor 2008
(in thousands of Russian Roubles, unless otheiwise stated)

Nete 4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continuad)

Environmental liabiiities

Ligbilties for environmerital ramediation are recorded where thera |2 a preseni obligation, the payment 15
probable and reliable estimates can be made Group regularly pays for normalive pollutions and
poliutions above norms, All such payments are recorded in the income statemant

Segmont reporting

The Group operates predominantly in a single geographical araa and industry, the generalion of electne
power and heal in the Russian Federalion The geherallon of eleciricity and heat are relaled activities and
are subjact to similar risks and returns, therefore they are reported as one business segment

interast

Interes! mcome and axpanse are recognized m o ithe ncome siatement for all debt instrumeanis en an
acorual basis using he effectiva rate of interest mathad. Interest income Includes nomnal Inlerest and
amorised discount and premium. When loans and receivables become doubtful of collection, they are
written down to their recoverable amounts and interest income is thereafler reconnized based on Iha rale
of inlerest thal was used Lo discount the fulure cash llows fof the purpose of measuring e recoverable
Bmodnt, '

Note 5. Group subsidiarios and associated companies
The Group's cansalidated financial stalements includa the lollowing wholly owned subsidiaries

] ﬂwnvwblp_i’-
31 Dacambar 31 Dacembar
_____Name of subs|diary . Aetivity 2008 2007
JSC "Navoinoskovakaya GRES Electitcily and hasl ganepation . 100
JEE "Belgorodskaya Maal Nelwork — Heal generalion and disiibulion 100
Company”
JSG "Orlevskiya Mual Nelwork Haal geteralion and disiibulion 104
Company”
JSC “Smelenskaya Meal Netwark Haal ganeration and distibution 100
Company”
JEC "Kurskaya Meat Natwork [Heal genaration and distibuion 100
Company”
JSC "smolenskieploenargorement”  Repairs of heal- and eleciromachanical 100

aguipment of powar sialionz

In the raporting year the Parent company merged with JSC "Navomoskovskaya GRES' In addllion. fram
2008 the Group alse includes the following fiva newly established 100% awnad subsidiaries J5C

"Belgoradskaya Meal Nelwork Company”, JSC "Orlovskaya Heal Netwark Company”, JSC "Smalenskaya

Heat Network Company” JSC "Kurskayas Heat Network Company”, JSC "Smolenskieplognargoramont’
{Mote1).
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TGC 4 Group
Notes to the Consolidaled Financial Statements for the yoar ondod 31 Decembar 2008

(in thousands of Russion Roublos, unlass olhorwise alatad)

Note 5, Group subsidiaries and associated companies (continued)
The Graup nas the [pllowig associaled companies:

Ownerahip, %

31 Dacambar

___ Name of associate o Activity 2008

IS "Enargetic Heallh Cenlre Heealih and recreation of famihes and 44
chilldren

JEC "Technotssl-Energo’ Agsamibly and iepali works including A%

lncilities confrallad by the RF
Giovernmant Technical Supoerviion
JSC "Schekinsklys PGL" lechnical supaivision services wilh a1
respact 1o dasign and construction of
__power generaling units_

31 Decombaor

2007
db

45

13

In thes reporting year the Company's interest in the chartar capital of J5C "Schekinskiye PGU" changed
from 13% as al 31 December 2007 up to 41% as at 31 December 2008 as a result of recaiving shares in

the process of TGC-4 rearganisation in the form of a miergar with JSC T TGEA Helding”

As at 31 December 2008 mvestmants in the shares ol JSC ‘Schakinskiye PGU" are recagnized on (he
balance sheal in the zero amount, net of the related impairment The assel has bean impaired due 1o

the bankruptoy procaduré ol JSC "Schekinsklye PGU

The table balow summarises the movements in the carying amount of the Group's Invesiment In

associates T
Yoar ended
31 Decembaor
Narrative - 2008
Carrying amount at 1 January 13 463
Fai valug ol nel assols of associales acquired 5,165
Impairmant of investments in dssoiales (5 165)
Fair value of net asseta of associates disposed
Share of profil of associates 232
Dividends recelved fram associaias S
At 31 Dooembor . B 13,445

Year ended
31 Rocombor
2007
34,394

{27,154)

7415

(1,002
13,463

Summarised financial nformation of associates, including ihé aggregaled amaounts of assste. labililies,

revenues and profit or loss is as follows
JSC "Energetic Health Contrg™

_Balance Shoot

Narrative = S 31 Docember 2008 31 Ragembar 2007
Propaity, plant and aquiprmin| - 22,204 21,836
Tatal non- nurmnt asgols - 22,204 21,836
Cashand cash equlvalunt&. 1,567 2.ung
Agcounts recalvable and prepaymenta 804 ann

nventories 4o 306

Total current assats o 2792 3,387
TOTALASSETS 24,996 25,223

Accounts payable and cetuals 4 78
Total currant liabililes 7 75
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 7 75

Incoina Statement o o - N
Narrative Yoar ended Year ended
B 31 Decemebr 2008 31 Docambar 2007

Revanue ——— 11,985 11,902
_ Profit(loss) for tha year [159) 5473
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TGC-4 Group

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statermenta for the year ended 31 December 2008

(in thousands of Russian Roubles, unleas olhorwise sialed)

Note 5, Group subsidiaries and assoclated companies (continued)

JSC “Technotest-Energe”

_Balance shoet R
lerntiw S 31 December 2008 31 Decumber 2007
F‘rupanr {;lant and &qmprnani = a27 $3a5
Tatal non- current assels _ AZT 695
* Cash and cash equivalents 522 Ban
Accouiit receivable and prapayments B 132 1.086
Total current assats = 235 e
_TOTAL ASSETS 2781 2826
_Deforred tax labiliies = o 28 24
Total nen-current liabllitics 29 28
Accounits payable and acérils — 303 271
Total current liabilities 303 271
TOTAL LIABILITIES 332 299
_Income Statemant e e —
Narrative Year ended Yoar anded
31 Decemebr 2008 31 December 2007
_Revunug — — 13 887 17 502
_Prafit for the year B33 99?

Note 6. Discontinued operations

Operations discontinued in 2007

In 2007 shares of subsdiaries JSC "Ryazanenargoremont’ and JSC “Tambovenergospetsremaonl’ were
dispased by a compalitive sale of shares with the involvement of a specializied agen!

JSC “Ryazanenargoremont”

Inuame Statemenl
— 3 ﬁ;n-th_n:ndnu
_Narrative 30 March 2007
Reavanue 285
Cosl of sales {1.116)
Financial costa 45
_Incame 1ax expeénse - B 17,674
_ Not profit for the period SR 16,798

Cash Flow Statoment

Narrative

3 months andod

30 March 2007

" Cash at 1l lhn hnqlrmlng_ of thn_purln-:l

Dberming activilies

Investmant activiling
_Financial petivities

Cash ot 4 the end of t [ thi pﬂrlod

27

___18
{7,058)
2675
4373
L
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TGC- Group
Motos to the Consolidated Financial Statoments for the yoar ended 31 December 26008
{in thousands of Russian Roublas nnless otherwise slated)

Note 6, Discontinued operations {continued)
JSC “Tambovenergospetsremont”

Income statement

Pariod ended

Narrative 19 June 2007
Revenue 5,084
Cosal of sales (7.037)
_Income lax oxpanse T
Not logs for the poriod = — (2,086

Cash Flow Statement
—— Period endod
Narrative 18 June 2007
Cash at the beginning of the period . 1474
Operating activities 6,333
Investmant activities (210
_Finandial aclivilies B B - _{(400)
Cash at the and of the period = —L

The following gaun from sales of subsidianas was included In praft from discontnuad operations for (he
yaar énded 31 December 2007

“Narrative — " Yaar ended
- — 31 December 2007
Gﬂll'll !rum aales ul nubsiﬂlarlm ﬂﬂlfﬂ

Note 7. Related parties

Parties are considered fo be related Il ane parly has the ability o control the othar party, is under
gommon conlicl, or can exercise significant |nfluence over the other party In making financial and
opetational decisions, of lhe party is a member of the Key management personnel of the enlily or ils
parent In considering each possible relaled parly relationship, attentien 1s directad 1o the substance of
the relationahip, nol merely [he legal form

The nature of the related parly relationships for those rélatad parties with whom the Group antered Inlo
significant lransactions or had swnificant balances culslanding as al 31 December 2008 and
31 Dacember 2007 15 detgilad balow

As al 31 December 2007 50.02% of the voling ordinary shares were owned by [ha state-centrolled RAD
UES. Therelaré, the relaled parties of the Group In 2007 Includsd RAOQ UES and ils subsidianas as well
as ofher eniities contralled by the State

In Juna 2008 RAQ UES's intaresi decreasad to 0% &s a resull of the sale TGC-A shares (o ONEXIM
HOLDINGS LIMITED,

As al the reporting dale ONEXIM HOLDINGS LIMITED who owns 49 5495% of the Company's ordinary
shares has significan influence gvar the Company

Transaclions with subsidianes aof RAQ UES ralated to sales of electric power and ofher sales as well as
purchases of alactric power and othér purchases for 2008 have bean disclosed for the perlod fram he
year beginning till 20 Jupa 2008

The table balow shows related party transachons for Ihe perods ended 31 December 2008 and
31 December 2007 and balancas with relaled parties as at 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007
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TGC-4 Group
Notos to the Consolidaed Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2008
{In thousands of Ruasian Rodublas. unléss atherwise staled)

Mote 7. Related parties (continued)
Transactions with subsidiaries of JSC RAO UES of Russia
Transaclions with sibsidiarias of RAO UES were as lolows!

Narrative Potiod from 1 January Year ended
o 30 June 2008 31 Dacember 2007
Income
Zales of haal and elecincity 1,663 632 4,576,384
Olher salas 37634
Exponsocs
Purchase of alecifcily 130,436 364,040
Rapinrs and lecheal mantenanoe 44612 H4.974
MOREM services 129 887 155,488
Clher axpanses 14,680 22451
Interest exponsd - 8,633

There gre no balances related to transactions with subsidianes of RAQ UES for the year anded 31
Decamber 2008,

MNarratlve Yoar ended

- N - - 31 December 2007

Accounts recervable and prepaymots, gross 83,010

Provigion lor impalment of accounls fecelvable (A5, 765

Accounts recenvable, nal 37,154
_Aceaunts payable dnd acorusls 44,413

Significant transactions with other related parties represent transactions with JSC "Tulskaya distrubution
company” which 18 relatad to the Group by the same member of the key management personel as of the
Group

“Marrativa Year ended Yaar endod
o 31 Decombor 2008 31 December 2007
Income
_Sales of heat and electiicity 2289471 < 387 2894
Exponses
Purchase of electdally 8477

There are no balances relaled o ransaclions with JSC "Tulskaya distrubution company’ lor tha yea
endad 21 Decembegr 2008

The Group does nal have any transactions with companies confrolled by ONEXIM Group for the year
ended 31 December 2008

Froducts gold to related parties on standard commercial terms at market prices. The cosl of sold elecirlc
and heat anargy was detarmined at the ariffs establishad by the regulatory authority for each station

Goods, produats, work and services from related parties were bought on standard cemmercial terms at
markel prices, except for prices of goads and services that are regulated by the Lariff lagislation.

Tranaactions with key management

Compensation is pald to mambers of the Managamen! Board of he Group lor ther services in full lime
management positiens The compansation (& made up of a contractual salary, non-cash benefita and a
performance bonus depending an resulls for (he pered according o lhe Russian stalutory financial
stalements The compensation s approved by he Board of Diectors In addition, mambers of the
Maragement Board are paid diseretionary bonuses, which are approved by the Chairman of |he
Managernent Board based on lis assessmeni of each Board meamber's cantribulion

Fees, compansation or dllowances to the members of the Board of Directons lor thar serpces i thal
capacity and for attending Board maetings are paid dapending on resulls for the year
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TGC-4 Group
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the yoar ended 31 December 2008
{iri thousands of Russian Roubles, dilass olherwise statod)

Note 7. Related parties (continued)

Key management racelvad the following remunaration during Ihe years ended 371 Decambar 2008 and
31 Decembear 2007

i:r:'nr_nn_rj-u_d_:!:l.-bam_mihr 2008 Yoar ondod 51 ﬁucomlmr 2007

Narrative Expenses Liahilitios Expenses  Liabilities
Snlanes FAN 136 185 GOk 1,072
Bonuses 44 651 - 21,566 .
Compenaalion 4,701 . 4827

Ot 4,764 - 4177

Contibulions bndsr pension

Boresmants 458 = 414 -
Total 75,810 T36 46,584 1,072

Al 31 December 2008 there were 11 mambers of e Board of Directors and 3 members of lhe
Managament Board

Tarmination banofits

I May 2008 TGC-4 enterad inlo addonal agreemants to employment conlracts with he General
Directar and members df the Company's Managemen! Boaid Thede agreements sat oul the procedure
terms and conditions for termination benefits payable to members of the Company's top management
The amount of such benelits depends on the cause and date of the termination  Under these
agresments, termination benefits are only paid on tarmination taking place within the penod from 1 May
2008 through to 1 June 2008. The amount paid o key managemant parsonnal in the reporting year
totalled RR 25,984 thousand The amount to be paid by the Company vares ram zara 1o RR 8,870
thausand

e Group has no other compansation programs.

a0
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TGCA Group
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staternents for the year ended 31 December 2008
{in thousands of Kussian Roubles, uninas olherwiso dinted)

Mote 8. Property, plant and equipment {(continued)

The Grolip changed (ts accounting policies relaled o revaluation of property planl and sguipment lram
1 January 2007 (Note 4) '

Far each revalued clasa of properly, plant and aguipment stated at revalued amount in these financial
stalaments; the carrying amount (hat would have been recognized as al 31 Decamber 2008 had he
assets been camed under the cost model 15 as {ollows,

Electriclty & Eloctricity Healing Construction 0
Tt digtribiition  networks i in progress e
—gonarilion . .

‘Not book value as a
31 Docember 2008 8785233 358138 16830412 1.910,236 _66apasz 18,304,501
HNet book value as at

31 December 2007 17,275,348 B47.561 5648336 5214774 1,751,466 30537 487

Canslruclion in progress représenta the canying amount of property, plant and eguipment that has hot yal
been available for use in production, including genarating stations under conatruction, and advances (o
sonstruction companies and suppliers of properly, plant and equipment. As at 31 D&cambar 2008 such
advances amounted to RR 4,502,718 thousand (as al 31 Decambar 2007 — RR 2 130,928 (housand)

Other proparty. plant and eguipment include molor roads, coolers, chimneys, vehicles, computers. office
fixlurea and ather equipment.

Thara ara no pledgad property, plant and eglipment

Impairment provision for property, plant and equipment

As deserlbad in Nole 2. 1he ongoing global financial and economic crisis continues lo effect the Gioup
in particular

« fhe linancial crisis has resulted (i a higher valatility of stock markets, severe reduction of hquidity
in Russian ecanomy and aggravated lerms af ralzing funds in Russia,

= miditerm prognoses of such macroecanomic indicators as GDP and nflation ndex have
changed significantly,

= dacline in prices lor cormmoditios, in particular for oll, slable gas condensate, liquified geas and il
products is the evidence of the reduced demand from consumers,

«  lower liguidity levels led to reduced praduction al some Russian enlities and congeguently to
reduced damand far electnicity;

+  significant reduction of TGC-4's markel capiiahization in the tourth quarier 2008

These developments have resulted n a change (o the assumpltions thal were used to delermine the valus
in use of the assets thal camprise the cash generaling unite Branches and subsidiaries of TGC-4
Ineluding power atalions and heat nalwork assels were ysed as the relevant cash generaling units

Al Impairment review has been camed oul by companng the recoverable amounl of ha (ndividial sash
genarating units with their net book values. The recaverable amount was generally based on valua i
usa, which was caloulated basad on estimated fulire cash flows using various assumptions including the
followlng

+  Cash flows were projected based on actual operating results for 2008 and the business plan for
2009, Projected futura cash flows from operating activity as sl reporting dale are lower har
sslimaled as al | January 2007 paricularly due o the grawth of oparsiting expenses and the
decrease of sales volumes, parlially becausa of the nfluence of linancial crisiz, Regulated tariffs
pstablished for JSC "Belgorodskaya Heatl Network Company”, which was separated from TGC.
4, do not recover all current éxpenses of that subsidiary, and consequently 1esull m the
projection of negative cash flows from 2008,

s A posidax discount rate of 15.87% was applied in delermining the recoverabla amount of the
genaraling units. The discount rate was caloulsted based on the weighied average cos! of
capilal A post-tax discoun| rate of 13.89% was used for (he revaluation in 2007,

33



TGC-A Group
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Note 8. Properiy, plant and egquipment {continued)

The forecast periad far existant capacily is 12-14 years The forecast period for the revalualion in
2007 was sel up lo the year 2025 18 years),

The values assignad to the key assumplions represant management's assessment of future
trends in the business and are based on bolh exlernal sources and internal sources)

Annual increase in electricily tanffs is estimated by managemenl (o be &l the level of gas prices
growth (principal technological fuel),

Annual increase in heat tariffs is estimated by management In the parl related 1o fuel — al the
level of gas prices increase and in the par refated 1o direct componant < at the level of inflation
rates;

Annual increase in capacity tariffs is estimated by management (o be in ling with the mllation
[l

The foreeast of electricity, capacily and heat prices in revalualion madel in the year 2007 for the
perind 2007-2010 ware hasad on Scenario foracasl of developmenl of electric ulility industry in
Russia, bul singe 2011 appraiser used assumplion that prices should be sel al tha level which
could lead the campany to EBITDA/Revanue retio equal fo 2057% which s average [0
emerging markels in energy sector Such assumplion was hot used in 2008,

Annual growlh of gas prices is sslimated by the management as 26% per annum (‘p.a.") in 2000-
2010; 37% pa in 2011, 30% pa in 2012; 20% p.a in 2013, 10% pa in 2014, 3-7V% starting
from 2015, For the 2007 revalualion gas prices were assumed to grow as 27% p.a. in 2008-2010
20%in 2011 8% pa n 2012-2015 and 3% p.a starting from 2016,

Annual growth of coal prices s astimated by the management as 3.6% pa staring from 2008
Far tha 2007 revalualion coal prices were assumead to grow al 3-10% pa.

Growth of mazul prices is estimated as 1-5% pa from 2009, For lhe 2007 ravaluation mazut
prices were assumed fo grow at 3-10% p a |

Annual grewth of inflaten 15 astmaled by the management as 10% pa n 2009; 94% pa In
2010 , 8% pa in 2011, 7.2% pa in 2012, 7% pa. in 2013, 3-8% starting from 2014 For the
2007 revaluation the following inflation rates were used: 6% pa in 2009-2013, 5% pa in 2014-
2015 4% pa In 2016-2018 and 3 % p.a. starting from 2019

The assumption was made Lhal production volumes of elacliricity and heal will remain al the
current leve! for the whole impairment fest period (investment program (s not ingluded);

Ingrease af ather cost (except of fuel) will nol excead tha inflaton rate

The impairment loss recognized against each of the cash generaling units is presented below'

Total  Charged to Charged to tho
Narrative . e [mpalment loss  equity Income statement
JEC "Belgorodskaya Hedl Nelwork Compaiy” (2,706.270) (B8 1,605 (1,724 375)
J5C "Tulenargocomploct” (33,400) = (33,450
Hryanskaya regional genaallion (362,141} (66,205) (285 B4f)
VoronehsKaya egional generalion (958,020 (336 507 (602 453
Knlizhiskaya regional generalion (133,820 {(9,903) 1123 BSY)
Kurskaya regional ganeralion (2.268,061) (B2 608 (1.347 363)
Yosloshnaya regonal genaration (huB2a60) (2.262,008) (3.4304852)
Ryasanskaya fogionil genuition (301,150) {164 2B84) (148 BAG)
Tulakaya regional genaralion (hG7T 113) (1,207 681) (2 469 532
Imipairment of corporale assels (40,840) (16,584) (25,256)
Impatrmant of advances fo condfiuction (410053 _ (410,953)
_Total e _ (18546717) (7,945,835) {10,500,862)
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Nete 8. Praperty, plant and equipment (continued)

The following table as al 31 December 2008 presents sensiiviies of profit and loss and aquiy o
reasonably possible changes (0 the post-tax discount rala, inflation rate and annual growlh of ges prices
applied at the balance sheet date relative fo the impairment assumplions made by the Group, with all
other varlables held constant

Expocted impact ~ Ehange forecast scenario factor
WACC ©Inflatien Gas prices growth
L 1% % % 1% V1%
Impacl on profit and loss  1,166633  (1443008)  (1,267,780) 906503 686,193 (1.046.641)
Impact o sty dB0E94  (670,381) (264,504) 180 463 245878 (1,206.107)

The impairmant test resulted in an imparmeni loss of RR 18,546,717 thousand being racognised (as at 31
Dacember 2007 - RR 0 thousand).
Finance lease

The GmuF} leases property plant and equlpment on the basis ol finance lease agreements Al The end of
gach leasa lransaction tha Group buys propertly, plant and eguipment at repurchase price

The fallowing lable shows the net book value of assets under finance lease

31 December 31 December
_Mwrvativa 2008 2007
Electriclly and haat genaration = BAOIGY 8917435
Finance lease rantals are payable as follows'
Maturity table for finance lease 31 Decomber 31 December
(diecounted minimum loase payments) 2008 2007
Maturity e -
not later han one year 170,208 160,855
from 116 5 years 220,240 300,537
Total 390,538 560,332
Maturity tablo for linance loase a9 Dwumﬁrr 31 Decembor
(undiacounted minimuim loase paymaerts) 2008 2007
Maturity o = —
not lalar thai one yesl 2684876 246 660
fram 1 to 5 yoars . 277,213 g2 088
Total 562,088 908,954

Operating lease

Thia Group use land on which Iha Group's buildings and facilities are located The land is @ proparty of
local state authorities and thi Group uses it under operating lagsa terms

Lease payments 1or land and ather proparly, planl and equipment delermined based on the leasa
agreements terms are as follows

As at 31 Dacembor 2008

Loase of  Loase of other

Harrative hulldings and praperty, plant
—— — Land leaso  structures  and equipment Total
Under one Yl 133,235 169749 BY11 167,125
From 116 & years S78.639 44 G55 15,731 436, 364
FromByaars ___ 1,856,070 56,495 ar.4z1 1,640,887
Total = 2,067 844 118,463 60,063 2,246,470
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Note B, Property, plant and equipment {continued)

As at 31 December 2007

Lease of Lease of other

Marrative bulldings and  proporty, plant and
— Land lease  structures  equipmant _Total
Undar one year 126, 634 22 448 4,405 162,787
Fram 1 lo 5 yoars 404,171 65,739 14,707 afa 617
FromSyears 1,455,738 56,426 37,650 154,815
Total 1,985,844 144,613 66,762 2,187,219

The above land lease agreements are usually condluded for 1-49 years with prolongation fght. The
renlals are subject 1o reqgular review that may result in sdjustment 1o reflect the market conditions

Management of the Group believes, that affer the axpiration of the land lease agreements (hey will be
renegatiated onto additional perlads.

Note 8. Other non-current assets

31 Dacembar 31 Docambor

e 2008 2007
Avalable-for-sale nvedtments i th fupd A3 667 6,002

Lotler of aredil 28,326 38,538

Available-for-sale nvestmants 28,494 __BAE7
Total 140,489 121,007

Al 31 Dacember 2008 the assets recorded an joint accounts and on indwidual accounts in non-state
pansion fund In respect of current emplayaes in amount of RR 83,667 thousand (RR 76,002 thousand al
31 December 2007) are intended lo be used for setflement of defined benefit pension obligations

The Group has an imevocable letter of credit for equipment delivery amounting tc RR 28 328 thousand as
at 31 December 2008 (RR 38,536 thousand as at 31 December 2007) The decrease of the letter of
credil amount diring the perlod ended 31 December 2008 related lo the payment to a supplier and
reduced total amauni of the letter of cradit according 1o the contract

As at 31 December 2008 avallable-for-sale Investments included the shares of JSC "RusHydro” in the
amounl of RR 27 182 (hausand (45,227 455 shares al [he markal value RR 0 601) received by TGCA s
arasult of a marger with JSC *TGC-4 Halding”

Mote 10. Inventarios

31 Docamber 31 Docembar

Marrative 2008 2007
Fusl stock 1,368,841 I 306G 867
Raw and matarials 203,475 338 222
legs impalimain (4,430 {3.873)
Olher nvenlores 200144 206672
_lesg impalmeit __{B,424) (w768}
Total 1,858,247 1928123

As at 31 Dacembar 2008 fuel slock of RR 1,280,730 thousand were pledged as collatersdl according 1o
loan agreamerils

As al 31 Dacember 2007 no Inventories ware pledged as collateral
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TGC-4 Groups
Netes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Tor the year ended 31 Decembar 2008
{in ithausands of Russian Roubles, unless ol herwise alited)

Note 11. Accounts raceivable and prepayments
Accounts raceivable (payments expected aflér 12 months of lhe reporting date)

31 Dm‘-ﬂlﬂ bier

31 Docomber

Narrative 2008 2007
Lnnu tarm iade moeables 4019 248,808
lxss impairmeant (2,085) (204 GO
Other long-turm recyivables 18903 19,490
lass impanmant — (8,011 (7 635)
Total linancial assets 14,950 56,069
Advances issued fo supphers and prepaymanla 58 BA7 30, ﬂuﬂ
leas Impalnmant .
Long-term VAT due from the budgel B 371 5873
Total non-financial assots 68,028 _44,879
_Total 82,988 100,848

Accounts receivable (payments expected within 12 manths of Ihe reperting date)

S| Du:nmhu;

31 Datember

Narrative = 2008 ... 2007
lrade receivables 3,108 860 1,826 466
less impairmen| (B27 BAO) (170 141)
Other nesotints receivablo 166,356 104,847
less impaliment - . -
Total financial assots = 2,647,336 1,761,272
Advaiices issuad 10 suppliars and prepaymenis 1641075 |, 252,041
less impairment ' :
Other taxes prapald 3116 55,916
VAT ielmbursable o 13067 30,084
Total poninancial assets = 1,657,258 1,338,049
Total — 4,304,594 3,098,321

The above accounts raceivable and prepaymants Include receiviables from related paitles (Note 7)

The Individually impaired receivables maitily relate to Housing and ulllties infrastructure. which are in
unaxpectadly difficult economic situations. (| was assessed lhat a portion of the receivables is expected

ta be recoverad

Accounts receivable by groups as af 31 Decamber 2008

Housing and

tndustrial utilities
— — consumars  infrastructure  Population _Other
Mol yat due accounis eceivabla 130.474 1,012,584 124 507 1053411
Uverdue accounts receivable ' - Eh
not impaired 3,024 185,364 22 484 115,483
[ncluding by dales of dulay
from 1 1o B0 days 7 15511 7 BaG 48 840
from i1 1o 160 days 57 16,905 i 11 258
from 151 1o 330 days 1,261 B4l 14,471 84 181
Irom 331 o 1080 days 4,037 B23
_over 106] days S B2 162 g
Overdue accounts mosvabls T
impalred 38,840 415,906 48,372 123,872
Including by dates of dalay
from 1 1o 60 days - .
fiom &1 1o 160 days 66 34 GER 414 60,068
frior 151 to 330 days 3.378 182 466 9615 13,500
from 331 lo 1040 days 25 178,680 34,8566 48 268
over 1051 days 36,171 10,182 3,488 5000
lizsg impatrment of everdua
faceivables _ (3984D)  (415008)  (48.372) (123,672
Total 133803 1,197,948 146,991 1,168,894

sl"i

2 320 ﬂBB
326,350

213,508
28,224
78,394

4,860
1,364

627 BBO

93,214
219,058
261,858

53,750

{627,880)
2,647,336
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2008

(i Ihousands of Russian Roubles, unlogs otherwise stalod)

Note 11, Accountis receivable and prepayments (centinued)
Accounls recelvable by groups as at 31 December 2007

~ Housing and

Fopulation Other Total

BO 156 458105 1,143,021

65,7564 119,678 518,251

24,714 38,813 178,381
2132 € 750 53,562
8,329 11196 178,202

20,604 42,026 193,201

- . 390 17,908

A 64,003 170,141

2215 118 4,627

- 4,492
2,306 40,824 45,341
6,150 22,820 57474
631 10,032 58,307

(1310) (64003 (170,141)

Industrial utilitios
consumers  infrastructure
Nol yet dug accounts receivable 27075 S68.614
Overdus accounts moeivable
not impaired 14 667 428017
Ineliding by dates of dalay
fram 1 1o B0 days 1,495 110,854
from 81 1o 1560 days a7 44,613
from 1461 1o 330 days 1,404 197 272
from 331 to 1040 days 4,741 125,847
overididays 7.919 9,696
Ovardua acoounts recaivabile
impairad 48,328 afA10
inciuding by dates of delay
frovm 1 1o 60 days 1,888
from &1 1o 150 days 4,452
from 1451 lo 330 days 17 12,164
from 331 to 1050 days 10,261 168,134
oval 1087 days 38,080 B.h%44
lizss mpairment of averdun
mcoivables (49,328) {15410
Total 41,672 996,632

144,825 578,043 1,761,272

Managemenl has delermined the Impalrment based on the specific custorer identification, customer
payment lrends, subsequant receipts and setllements and analyses of expacted fulure cash flows

The Group's management believes thal the Group's entities will be able o realize the net iecaivable
amounl through dlrect collactions and alher pon-cash selllements, and therefore, (he recorded value
approximates thew fair value Long tarm restruclured receivables are reccamsed at amartised coat, The

diseounting effect is included |n impairment
Movemenls of impairmenl are presentad below.

Ipairment charge

Ageounts recaivabla willtan-oll as had dabits
Impairmant raversal

Discounting effect - nel

91 thie nm!_cf_f the pariad

Yoar ﬁﬁaﬁd. Year ended

31 December 2008 31 December 2007
382279 HE LRI

521 B48 87,086

(238.403) (27 314)

(16 365) {8 108)

. (5.179)_ _(15.664)
635,980 382,279

Movements of Impairment by groups of receivables for the year ended 31 December 2008

Housing and
Indusirial utllities

. Narrative consumers _ Infrastructure Population  Other Tatal
Al the beginning of o B
the period, including
digcaunting effecl 49,328 45 410 11,310 296,23 182,279
Impalimesn! chaigs &ara 384 170 a7 062 H4 537 521,648
Aceolints 1aceivahle
wiitten-ofl az pad
dubls (16,567) (20,418) [200.420)  (236,403)
linpalimant fevarsal

(3 164) [13,197) {16,385)
Discounting ellecl
nel . - o 16,175 16179
Al the and af the . — . ) G !
period 39840 415,998 48372 131872 635,960
38
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TGC-A4 Group
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2008
(i Ihousands of Russian Roubles. unless otherwise stated)

Note 11. Accounis receivable and prepayments (continued)

Movements of impairment by groups ol receivables for the year ended 31 December 2007

Hbun_lﬂg and
Industrial utilities
. Narrative gonsumors  Infrastructury. Population Other Total
Al the beginning of
the pariod, including
digcoliiing effaci A4 063 36 167 7,603 257,328 346,059
Impairment charge 4 367 42 160 3,707 47,342 87,596

Accounts recelvable
willlan-off @s bad
tahty {32) (28,857 . (725) {27,314)

Impairmant reyersal

{8,360) {1,845) {&,1498)
[acounting affect -
met o (15864)  (16,864)
At the end of the
period 49,328 45,410 11,310 218,231 382,279

Note 12, Daposits in banks

Financial assels comprised shor-lenm bank deposits In Russian Rouble in amount of BR 4 500 000
thousand as al 31 December 2008 (thers weare no short-term RR bank deposits as al 31 December
2007)

Effectiva
interesl rate, 31 Decamber 31 Decombar
o Bank Rating Rating agoncy T 2008 2007
JSE Sherbank of Russia 5] i3] Filch 9 5% 1 500,600 -
JSC "AKB @SBANH" BB+ Standard & Poar's 0, 7% 3,000,000 B
Tatal 4,500,000

The deposil in Sberbank of Russia with an initial matuity on 8 Juna 2010 for the amount of RR 1.500,000
thousand was actually redeamad on 15 January 2008 with an effective interas! rate of 9 1% The dieposit
in JEC "AKE ROSEANK" wilh the inltial maturily an 19 May 2009 for the amounl of RR 3,000 000 thousand
was actually redeemad an 22 January 2009 with an effective an interest rate of 9 45%

Note 13. Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 31 December

Narrative 2008 2007
Cagh al baik and it hamd 2,597,783 1618 463
Cash equivalentsinBR____ 1,884,811 174
Total 4,592,694 188,637

Cash included cash balances in RR in bank accounts and in hand of RR 157,035 thousand as at 31
December 2008 (RR 188463 thousand as al 31 December 2007), cash balances denominated in US
Dallars was of USD 83,074 thousand as al 31 December 2008 which equals RR 2 440 748 thousand al
tha exchange rale effective at 31 December 2008 (there wera no USD denominalad balances al 31
Dacember 2007)

Cash equivalents comprised shoil-leim USD bank deposll of USD 67 889 Ihousand as al 31 December
2008 which equals RR 1,954,586 thousand al the exchange rate affective al 31 December 2008 (as at 31
December 2007 there wara no short-term USD bank deposils) and cash on corporale cards. Thi
effectiva Inlerast rate for Ihe above deposit was 0.2% The original maturity of bank deposits is fram 30
December 2008 to 11 January 2008 '

The Group has no restricled cash balances.
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TGC4 Group
Notes o the Consolidated Financial Siatements for the year ended 31 December 2008
(in thousands of Russlan Roubles, unless olhemse slated)

MNote 13. Cash and cash equivalents {(continued)
Cash and cash equivalents are depoaited n Rusgian banks as follows:

M Recamber 31 Docember

Sy Bank Rating Rating sgoncy 2008 2007
Foragn currency bank deposits
JSC"AKB ROSBANK BB+ Slandard & Poor's 1.864 596 o
Total foreign currency bank doposits 1,994,596 z
Cash In bank accounts
JSC Bank VB BBB Fitch 74,0060 17,472
JEC Sherbank of Russia (SR ] Fiteh anezo 20,891
JSC “Alfa-Bank” fRi3- FFiteh 16,142 277
JSC MInE - 14,332 4
JSC *Bank of Moscow' HHB- Fiteh 12,292 G.594
JSC "AKB ROGBANK" BB+ Stondard & Poot's. 4,503 B
GAZPROMBANIE 1SC) Bh4 Slandard & Poar's. 400 127020
Prio-Vneshtorgbank (J5C) - - 432 2,082
NEQ "RTS clisating Houss (LLC) - - 13,692
JSC Promsvyazbank” B+ i 189
ofher e .. L. 22
Total cash in bank accounts 157,035 108,463
Foreign clmency bank aceounts
Al L BB Standard & Poor's 2,040,748
Total torelgn eurreney bank
ccounts ; i)
Cash on corporale cards
JASC Sharbank of Russia RBB itk 23 i3
JSC Bark VTE ABR Fitch 167 60
GAZFROMBAMNIE [15C) B+ Standand & Pooi's 57 e}
_other : = R | 41
Total cash on corporite cards 38 174

Ratings ara shown in accordance 1o Intermational rank
Note 14. Equity

Basis of presentation of movements in equity

The Graup was formed by the combination of & numbar of businesses undar comman conltrol Bacause
of the consequent use of the pradecessor basis of actounting, Iha principal component of the net squity
recognised for the Group s based on the historic carrying value of the nel assels ol the businasses
contributed as recorded In the IFRS financlal racords of the predecessor enterprises, ralher than the fair
values of those nel assets

Sharehoders' equity

At the extracrdinary general meeting held 31 August 2007 TGC-4 anarenolders decided to ncrease (he
aguity capital of TGC- by placing 586,000,000 000 additional ordinary registered shares with the pai
value of RR 0.01 per share and the total par value of RR 5860 000 thousand The placement wag
executed in May 2008 by public subscription (eertificate on the corrasponding entry made in the Unified
Stale Register of the legal antities Ne 2087154220240 al 20 May 2008)

On 29 Aprll 2008 Ihe Board of Directors approved the decision an the addilional issue of the registened
non-documentary ordinary shares of TGC-4 amounting 1o £.600,255 897 shares with a nominal par valua
of RR 001 wach, which were placed when spinning-off JSC "TGC4 Holding” from RAD UES win
subsaquent merger of JEC "TGC4 Holding” inte TGC-4 by converting the shares of JSC “TGC4
Holding" inta tha shares of TGC-4. In the framework of the memer. 5,203,612 900 shares wilh 8 nominal
valiye of RR 001 each for the lotal amount of RR 53,026 thousand were issued (cerlificate on the
corresponding entry mada in the Unified State Register of the legal enlities Ne 2087154358124 dated 25
August 2008)
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TGC-4 Group
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stataments for the year ended 31 Decembor 2008
{in thousands of Russlan Roubles, unless ollieiwise alalad)

MNote 14. Equity (continued)
The information aboul the Group's sharehalders’ equily is presenited balow

Narcative Tatal number Mominal value

Chrdinary sharas ag al

1 January 2008 1,321 201,964 859 13,212,020

31 Detembar 2008 1,.012.606,577,758 19,125,060

Fraterenoe shams as at

T January 2008 76.272.938.838 762 126
31 Detembor 2008 75 272 938 B3R o B 752 729

TOTAL a=s at

1 January 2008 1,306,474,903,697 13,964,749
31 December 2008 B 1,987,770.516 597 19,877,748
In 2007 the Group did not place additional shares

NufraUye Total number Nominal valug
Qiclinary shares ag at

1 January 2007 1,521,201 B84 858 15,212,020

31 Dacembar 2007 |, 431,201 oEd B6Y 13,212,020
Fraference ahares as al

1 January 2007 76,272 935 538 762 729
31 Dacember 2007 _ THE72038838 752 724
TOTAL as at

1 January 2007 1,306,474,503,697 13,964,749
31 Docember 2007 1,396,474 903697 13,964,749

Ordinary shares and proference shares

Prelerance shares have no nght ol cohversion of redemption, but are enlitlied (o a minimum annual
dividend of 10.0 parcent of net statutory profit. The dividend is declared entirely al the discretion of the
shareholdars. In total the praference dividend may not be less than the ordinary dividend and is not
cumulative. Preference shares carry no voling rights excepl when annual Sharehalders' meeling has nol
decided on dividends paymer| or decided on pariial dividends payments, in which case the preference
shares acquire voling rights. In liquidation preference shareholders are first paid any declared unpaid
dividands and then the neminal value of the shares (“liquidation value") Following this, preference
shareholders participate equally in the distributien of remaining assets wilh ordinary shareholders

Treasury shares

Treasury shares were bought back from sharehoiders of TGC-4 in February 2008 in the framewoik of the
mandatary reorganisalion procedure, Including 1,296,246 581 ordinary shares at ihe buy-back price of
RR 00244 for the tatal amount of RR 31,628 thousand, and 106 634,280 preference shares at the b=
back price of RR 0.0172 for the total amount of RR 1,834 thousand According lo the agreement on the
mergel of JSC "TGC-4 Holding" 1.296,044,491 ardinary shares of TGC-4 ware used for the purpose of
converting JSC "TGC-4 Holding" shares in the margar process

Share premium

The shara premium of RR 9,962,000 thousand was received from the placement of 586,000 000 000
ordinary shares (with the par value ol RR 0.01 per share) at a price of RR 0,027 per share. as approved
by the Board of Directors on 24 April 2008 (Note 1)

Merger reserve

The marger reserve represents the dilference betwsen the IFRS carrying value of the contnbuted nel
assets of JSC "Bryansk Generaling Company", JSC "Voronezh Generating Company’, JSC *Kaluga
Generaling Company’, JSC "Kursk Ganeraling Gompany’, JSC 'Oryol Generaling Company” JSC
“Prioksk Tamtorial Ganarating Company”, JSG “Ryazan Heat Supply Company’ and JSC 'Smolensk
Ganarating Company”. JSC "Lipatsk Generaling Company' and JSC "Tambov Generaling Company”
merged Inle (he Group and the minority interest The merger reserve was subsequently adjusted by the
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TGC A Group

Notes to the Consolidatod Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Decomber 2008

{in thousands of Rusalan Roubles, unless athenwide dtatad)

Note 14. Equity (continued)

share capital issued by TGC-4 ta reflect the transter of businessas awned by the enfitles under comman

cantral

Dividends

In accordance with Russian legiglation the Group distributes profits as dividends on the basis of he
financial stalements prepared I accordance wilh the Russian Accounting Rules, The slalutory
accounling reparts are the basis for profit distribution and other appropriations. The Russian legisiation
jdentilies the basig of distribulion as tha net prafit However, this legislation and other statutary laws and
regulations are opan to legal intérpratation and accordingly, management helieves thal currently, it would

nol be approptiate o disclose the distribulable reserves in these linancial statemants,

The following dividends were daclared by the Group, recognisad as a lability and deducted fram equity

for the reparting pariads:

o _‘Mnr anded Yoar endod
. MDecember2008 31 Docembor 2007
Daclared Paclarer

MNarrative . gl

dividends, in - Dividends por share,  dividends. In oy .

thousands of RR (housands of  vidends per share, RR

RR B . RE

JEG Termional MR 0000180455 per
Genaration Company 47 ordinary and praflerence
~lor year 2008 . 252 001 share
JEC "Terntonal HE 00000358044 pa)
Getieration Company 4" . ordinaty and pralerence
- lgi & manths 2007 0,000 shfi
JSC
Tulehelgocomploct’- foi RR 02274 par ordinary
year 2006 . . af ahare
JSC Taritorial RE 000007422577
Gonaration Company 4 frer prefamence
~for year 20067 5,587 ahmre

In June 2009 TGC-4 annaunced the dividands on preference shares of RR 1 763 thousand kased on the

performance results for the year ended 31 Decamber 2008 (Nole 28)

Note 15, Basic and diluted earnings por share

Narmrative

Lose attributable (o the sharghalders of TGC-4 (RR (housand)

Less profil from disconfinusd operations

Loss fram conliniuifig oparatons

Welghlad avarage number of ordinary shares issued (housands of
e e e o
Loss per ordinary share from nnntining operations attributable to
ssharehelders of the Group —basie and diluted (in RR per share)
Earings per ordinary sharo from discontinused spierations
atiributable to shareholders of the Group - basic and diluted {in RR
porshare)

a2

Year andod Year ended
31 Dacombar 31 Decembar
2008 2007
(9,718,080 (5,137 AG7)

- 63 465

(9.718,p80) (5,200,832)

1664 262 846
(0.008)

1.321,201.065
i0.004)

0.00L05.
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TGC -4 Group

Hotes to the Censolidated Financial Statements Tor the year ended 31 Docember 2008

(i Ihausands of Russian Roubles unlees otherwise staled)

Note 16. Current debt and current portion of non-current debt

Effective
MNaermbive e intorest rato, %
GAZPROMBANK (JSG), Tula Branch 7.8—150
JBC Sbharbank of Russia, Tula branch K 8604 7.0-13.0
JEC "AKB ROSBANK", Mid-Rusasian branch B5-765
'Royal bank of Scotjand” (CJSC) H.35
{ In 2007 - ABN AMRO Bank (CJSC)
JEC “Ala-Bank”, Tula Branch ap-43
Interest on bonded [oan 7.6
Current portlan of non-eurrant dobl, Ineluding
bandad lnan 78
flnance lease
Total

The current debts are denominated in Russian Roublas,

31 December
2008

1 B0, DG4
785110

A75 878

147560

2824488

170,298

5.870,626

31 Decombaor
. 2007
1 607 848
1,451 483
248 KOG

1,483 868
100,123
26,030

168 855
4,984,707

Sharl-term loans (ssued o [he Group wele secuied by inventorias totalling RR 1,260 738 thousand and
zalo a5 al 31 December 2008 and as al 31 December 2007 respeclively (Note 10)

Mote 17. Non-currant debt

Effoctive
interest Maturity 31 Decembar
Narrative rate, % date 2008
GAZPROMBANK (JSC), Tula Branch MHo=112 012 apz.a1n
JSG Sharbank of Russia, Tula braneh Ne .
BG4 84-94 2010 165486
JEC “AKE ROSBANK® 106 Z008 '
Bondail losn 78 2010 2624405
Finance laase 300,528
Total nei-current debt 3,873,337
Lasa cumant pomon of non-cuiment deb (2624 405)
Lass curian! portion of finance leaso 170, 208
Total 1,078,544

Maturity schedule for non-current debt (excopt for finance lease)
Maturlly . =T
From 1 1o 2 years
Liom:a (o §iyeors
_Total

.':11 -Dlncamt.mr
2004
165,485

08,810
 B58,304

31 Decomboer
2007

42,038
145,888
5,000,000
860,362
5,738,325

(169,835)
5,568,470

3I"l Ism‘.ominr
2007
177,933

5,000,000
547,834

The Group uses fixed rate loans, The Sroup has nel éntered into any hedging arrangemants |n respoct

of intarest rale expesures
The currancy of all nan-curfant borrowings is the Russian Roubles

As al 31 Dacermber 2008 obligations under the bonded loan were recognised within current debla in the
amaount of the offer thal was executed on 10 June 2009 for RR 2 824 495 thousand (Notes 16, 28)

As al 31 December 2008 the estimalad fair value of the non-cunent debl approximaltes its carrying vahie

Tha non-current debt was not securad by any pledged property
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TGC.4 Group
Motes to the Conzolidated Financial Statements for the year onded 31 December 2008
(in thousands of Russian Roubles, unless otherwise stated)

Note 18. Pension Habilities

The tables below provide information about the benefit obligations and actuaral assumphions used for {he

yaar ended 31 Decembar 2008 and he year ended 31 December 2007,
Amounls recogriisad In the consolidated balance shesl are as follows

31 December

Narrative - 2008
Presant valug al defined bonelt ebiigafivns (DBO) &4, 630
Fair value of plan assets .
Piesent value of unfunded obligalions 881,630
Unreconised nel acluarial losses {5,276)
_Untecognised pasi sarvice cost (80:905)

Net liahility inthe balance shest 805,449

Amounts recognisad n the consolidated statemant of oparations are as follows.

Yoar endoed
Marrativa 3 Decembor
Y B 2008
Cuirant aervica cosl 73365
literast gosl 56 147
Expectad ralurm on plan assels
Met actuarial (@am)/ loss recagnised i the perad 5885
Amoitisalion of past service cosl 8265
Curlailment gam
Immadiate raoognition of vested prior service cosl et
Not expense recognized in the Income Statement. - = 147,752

Changes in the prasent valua of the Group's defined benafit abligation are as lollows’

31 Deesmbar
2007
863,322

B3 322
(67,974
(an,161)
105,187

Year ended
31 December
2007

G0, 563

A9 195

(363)

G255

(39,081)
35,056
. 11ag25

31 Decembar 31 December
Marrative 2008 2007
Prasont valua of defined benelit obligations (DBO) ol baainning of vear 863,322 746845
Clrrent dervice cosl 73,365 50,663
Intarest cosl 56,147 49,105
Actuarlal (gains)/ loas (58,7133 G2 405
Fasgt sanvica cost 46,301
Henefils paid (47 .480) (652,416)
Cuttalmentgan S {38,371)
Presont value of defined bonofit obligations (DBO) at yoear and 891,631 863,322

Curtailment gain received in 2007 related o raduction of lJump sum on relirement

Piincipal actuanal assumplions ate as lollows

3 tim:um b

Marrative 2008
Nominal discount rate C000%
Wage growth rale 8.0%
Inflation rate 0%
Martalily tabls Russii 1880

31 Decembar
2007

6 76%

7.0%

3. 0%

Russin 18498

The Group expects lo contribute RR 53,001 Ihousand to Ihe defined banall plan during the year

beginning 1 January 2009
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TGC-4 Group

Notes to the Consolida.ad Financial Statomants for the year ended 31 Docembar 2008

{in thousands of Russlan Roubles, unless atherwise statod)

Note 19, Accounts payable and accruals

Narrative

Trade payables
_Total financial Habilities
Wages and salaries payable
Addvances raceiat

Income payable lo panicipants
_Other payables

Total nondinancial liabilities

Tetal

31 Decomber 31 Dﬁﬂﬂl'hijﬂ'l

2008 _ 2007
B60,650 408,387
850,650 408387
a74,035 FARABG
138 981 155,687

12,244 20,014
83,326 230,114
610,485 743,880

1,261,144 1,152,267

Trade payables are classified as financial lisbillies Contractual maturity date of trade payable s less

than one year

Note 20, Other laxes payable

Narrative

Froperty tax
Unifind socinl tax
Personal Incsmids thx
Land tax

VAT

Fines and penallias
Olher laxes

Total

_31 D;I:‘-’BT;hﬂl’ - I31 hucuﬁhur

2008 2007
75,758 64,144
78,132 78871
42,353 26, ThE
13,940 14,639

338,395 106
5 -
21,002 29,766
559,615 214,289

Mote 21. Income tax banefit

Narrativo

Current mcome lax charga
Delarréed Incame lax benal

Total

Yizar ended Yoar énded

31 December 2008 31 December 2007
372,609 260417
(2.802224) (1,838 805)
(2,489,715) (1,578,388)

During the year ended 31 December 2008 the Group enlities wers subject to a 24% income tax rate on

laxable profils

In accordance with Russian lax legislation, tax losses in different Group companias may not be offset
against taxable profits of other Group companies. Accordingly, tax may accrue even whore there |& a net

consolidaled tax loss

Nat profil before income tax for financial reporting purposas |8 recanciled ta thearatical income tax

(statutory profit tax rate - 24%) as lollows.

Narrative

Loas boforn profit tax
Theoretical incomiz tax chirge at an avarage satutory tax rate of 24%
Tax alfect of teins which are nol deductible Tor inxation puiposes
EHect fram changes in ax mie

_Unrecognised lax assel
Total
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Yaar end Yoar end
31 Decembor 31 December
2008 2007
(12,233.582) (6,794,445)
2,536,080 1, 8306687
{162,200) {52.279)
(223, 045)
(61,089) .
248,715 1,578,388
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TGC-4 Group
Motes to the Consolidated Finaneial Statamenia for the yoar ended 31 Doacember 2008

{in thousands of Russian Roublas. unless otheiwise siatad)

Note 21. Income tax benefit (continuad)
Deferrad income tax

Differences betwean IFRE accounting principles and Russian slalulory laxalion regulalions give nse lo
cerfain temporary differences between (he cairying value of certain assats and labilities lor linancial
reporling purposes and far income fax purposes.

Burlng the year ended 31 Dacember 2008 the Group's taxable profil was subject 1o ncome tax rate of
24%, In line with Russiap Tax law. starting from 1 January 2009 the Income lax charge shall be
calculated at the rate of 20%. In accordance wilh the accounting policies (Note 4) deferred tax assets and
llabilities are measured at 20 percent, the rate expected 1o be applicable when Iha assets or liabilities will
be reahzed

The 1ax effect of temporary differences fhat resulied in formation of deferred lax assets and labiliies 15
shown below:

- Charged to the income
Chargod to the statoment offect of the

31 December income  rate change from 24% e 31 December
Deforredtaxassets 2008 2~ statement 20% 2007
Other nan-currant abillies 161,090 24 063 (32 218) 160,245
Moni-curranl daki 44 048 (40,871 (3.810) 3,720
Accounis recalvable and .
prepaymants g i (14,468) (ia.711) 131, 742
Accounls payable and
acciunls 241 874 184 35 {(48,376) 106,215
Anventores g0z 183 0 0 0 (@20)
Doforrod tax assets as at

yoar and 642178 149,682 (108,435) 500,931

Charged to

Charged  the income

diractly to statamont

wgulty effect  effect of the

Charged to Charged of the rate  rate change
Deforred tax 3 Docember  the Income  directly o change fram  Irom 24% ta 31 Decembaer
[iabilities 2008 statement oquity  24%1020%  20% 2007

Froparty, plan
and aduipmant 40,070 (2.840066)  (1,671,360) (227,950) 118,837 5,250,480
Oihi non: )
cLrenl assils 16,732 1,840 - . (3,347) 18,240
[hventories {1.478) L - 1478
Other 9,805 4,106 - o (1979)  7.788
Defarrod tax
linbilities as

al year encd 566,698  [2,935588)  (1.671,350) (227 950) 114,611 5,266,975

The Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets in the amoun! of RR 247,295 thousand for the penod
ended 21 December 2008 (far the period endad 31 December 2007 RR zero) and related deductalls
temporary differences in the amount of RR 1,256,475 thousand (for the period ended 31 December 2007
RR zero), thesa cccurred malnly due le the Impairment of property plant and equipment In JSC
"Belgorodskaya Hesl Nelwark Company” as fulure aconomic profil of this subsidiary s nof probalsle
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TGC-4 Group
Notes to the Consolldated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Degembar 2008
{in thousands of Russian Roubles, unless olherwise stated)

Note 21, Income tax benefit {(continuod)
The cnmpamtlue intermalion lor delerred tax assats and habilities is shown balow

Charged to the Chargaod .
1 December Incoine diroctly to 31 Decembor
Defarred tax assets 2007 statement oqulty 2008
Othiar non-current latilities 169 245 14, 830 T 154,315
Propery, plant and aquiprment (136,820) 138 820
Mon-curmsnt doti 83729 10,118 . arait
Accounts recelvable and prepayments 137 742 4 885 126, 857
Accounts payzalile and accrials 106 215 28,830 - 77,385
Invenlortes - _(E1y . 514
Defarred tax. asaum au nt yuar and 500,931 (B0576) - 531 506
- ~ Charged to the Chargud
3 December Incams diroclly te 31 Decoembor
Deferrod tax labilities 2007 statement equity 2006
Propery. pleam and squipment 5,250 449 (1,945,205) 3,635 251 3,669 443
Other nor-clrrent assals 18.240 18,232 1 g
Inventories 1478 1,478
mhﬂr o - _tes  BIE - _1BE3
Dafnrrud tax Ilnhlllllnﬂ as at yoar end 5, EHE 975 (1,919,380) 3,635,251 3 571,104
The deferred tax assets and liabillties expected o ba recoversd within 12 months
Deferred tax Defarred tax
Narrative _liabilitios  assets
Propeily, plant and -&caLupmeni (34,208) -
Acoounta payabla and accruals (241,074)
Other non-current lialbilifies (10,618}
_Accounts receivable and prepayments - {94,563)
_Deforrad tax assets and liabilities expocied to be recovered jn 2009 ___(34,808) {346,055)
Defarrad tax agsets and llabilities expected to be recoverad from
2009 o {531,893) {196,123)
Note 22. Revenue, other operating income
Revanue
Year ended Yoar endod
Narrative 31 Decamber 2008 31 December 2007
Electricity and capacily 14,973,082 12,369 817
Haal anargy 13,431,258 11,420,726
_Other B B — 1842 . 197 732
Total 29,222,777 24,827,275
Other operating income
- - ~ Year ended Year ended
Rartive — 31 December 2008 31 Decumber 2007
Exchange dilferances 165,740
lcome from fines and penaltics pecogiitsad ﬂ'-‘l,B'l.? 3704
Incoma from proparty, plant and equipmant sales 21,362 28,741
lncamea fram prupuri'v. plani and eouigment wiilleialf 18,714 69,2‘,'(1
Accounis payable wittan-off 7.977 B,o7d
Stock sliplus ; 7688 61.420
Compensalion of inlems] edpanges on lans taken for fue i My
Saod o ¥ ! 3202 A7.348
Otherincoma - 18,540 2624
Total other aperating income 3nu 1T1 218,186
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TGC-4 Group

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements far the year endad 31 Docembor 2008

{in thousands of Russian Roubles, unless olherwiss statad)

MNote 23. Cpoeraling expenses other than impairment related (o property, plant and eguipment

Year endad Yoar ondod
_Marrative 31 December 2008 31 Decembaer 2007
Fusl axpense 14,610 GE2 19,811,133
Employes benafll 3981 975 3,398,523
[epracialion of propeity plart and equipment end !
Elmlz:ruaaunn of lﬁlaﬁgib&;&zamam MR 4,496,538 Helea
Purchiasad aloctricity 2,420 482 1,830,713
Hepairs and mainlanance 1,168 138 1,045, 845
Other raw malarlale and supplies (ineliding chamical agants) A66 721 B34,801
Provision (changes i provision) against legal clalims a7 821 38,550
:‘;ﬂ::mgngn pxponses (nclucing paymanls to waler realment 07 842 588,547
Changes ol gucounts racelvable Impalmmasil 440,104 3,634
Taxas othar Ihan ncon: 1ax 441 336 374,487
Renl payments 266,078 247,150
NOREM services 228 A31 181,086
Sacurily 164 411 142 6av
Panslan plan sxpanses a8 805 #5430
insurance cosl 83671 86,827
Tranaportatioh services 55,878 37,600
Consulting, legal and audil senvices 48 8R7 84, 325
Impairmeant of avallable-for-sales invesimen 16 268 26,068
Social expenges 36 BEZ 35,321
l,osses from properly, plant and equipment deposal 22 681 46,544
Lililies 21,985 2111
Impairmonl of invealmenl in associala 5,158 -
Environmantal paymanis 3,126 25,775
Changes In Invenlory Impaliment provision 276 59652
_Other axpenges 864,676 (69,044
Total 30,780,649 24,843,893
Employee banefiis Include
Year ended NYoar ended
Marrative 31 December 2008 31 December 2007
Salaries and wages, payroll laxes 3,790,364 3,233,159
Financial assistanca o amployees and mlird amployees 164,230 162,672
Pefined bahallf pension plan expances 18,805 656,430
_Defined contribulion pension plan expenses 27,301 10,692
Total 4,070,580 3,461,053
Note 24. Finance income, finance costs
Finance income
Year ended Year ended
_':l_n e iy 31 Deeember 2008 31 December 2007
nterast ihcame 540216 10,519
Wrore 540,216 10,5614
Finance costs
Yaar ended Year ended
siubbinin ) 31 Decomber 2008 31 Docember 2007
Inlares! expanse 864,120 778 684
Pansion intaras! Rxpanas 50 147 40, 184
Discounting offect. . H,633
Total 823,267 836,412
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Maotes to the Consolidaied Financial Statements for the yoar ondod 31 Decembor 2008
{in thousands of Russian Roubiles, unloss olherwizs slated)

Mate 26, Comimitiments

Sales commiiments

The Group sells elactrigity on the Iwo whalesala electncity (capaciy) markel seclors; free \rading sector
and ragulatad rading sactar

The Group has entared Inta a number af annual elechiclly sales agreemants with JSC “Cenlre for
Financial Setllements’, retall companias and large industrial customers

Purchase commitments

The Group enlilies concluded @ number of long-lerm contracts with JSC Gazprom' for the supply in
2008-2012 of the limiled gas with guaranteed velumes and delivery lerms. The principal suppliers of fuel
are JSC  "Gazprom”  subsdiaries:  LLC  "Belregiongaz'.  LLC  “Bivanskregongaz®,  LLC
“Voronezhregiongaz®, LLC ‘Kalugaregiongaz®, LLC "Kurskregiongas®, LLC ‘Lipetskregicngaz’. LLC
“Oryolregiongaz’| LLC “Ryazanregiongaz”, LLC "Smolenskregiongaz’, LLC “Tambovregiongaz® and LLC
"Tularegiongaz” Purchase volumes are determined an the basis of estimated production demands The
jpurchase price of gas is delarmined by Federal Service of Tariffs. The gas demand that 1s nol eovarad by
the limited volumes set up by OJSC Gazprom shall be satisfied by commercial gas purchases undey
short-lerm (up to one manths) supply contracts entered nfo following results of tenders hald on the
elactronic plattorm of LLC "Mezhragiongaz” and af prices determined by the tender

Social commitments

The Group contributas to the maintenance and upkéep of the local mfrastructura and the weltara of s
employees, Including contributions loward the development and maintenance of housing, hospitals,
transpor services, recraation and other social needs n the gecgraphical areas in which |t bperates

Capital commitments

Futlire capital expenditure for which contracts have baen signed amounted to RR 18,396 958 [housand
as at 31 December 2008 (31 December 2007 RR 7,882,096 [housand),

The major part of future capital expenditures under contractual abligations ss al 31 December 2008 ara
ralated o the lollowing siations enlargemént of Novomozkovskaya GRES In amount of ER 7 669,758
thousand, recenstruction of Dyagilevskaya TETs in amount of RR 5,781,021 thougand, reconstiuction of
the boiler In North-Wesl reglon of the town of Kursk in amount of RR 1,974,891 thousand, raconstruction
of Voronezhskaya TETs-2 in amount of RR 1,802,725 thousand

Note 26, Contingencies

Political environment

The operatons and aarmings of Group entilies contnue, from me 1o tme and in varying degreess 1o be
gffecied by political, legislative, fiscal and reguletory developments. including those relsted (o
enviranmental protection in the Russian Federaton

insurance

The Group holds limited insurance policies in relalion to 15 assels operalions, public lability or ofher
ingyrable risks. Accordingly, the Group |s exposad lor those risks far which i does nol have insurance
Legal proceedings

since Aprl 2008 TGC-4 15 a defendant an arbitration processas with JSC “Tambov Utiiies” (TKS" In
connaction with a number of claims demanding selllemeant of a dabl for water supplies. The alaims cover
the pariod of 2006-2008 and (otaled RR 864 362 thousand
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TGC-4 Group
MNotes to the Conselidated Financial Statements for the year onded 31 Deocomber 2008
(in thousands of Russian Roubles, unless ofherwize statad)

Nete 26, Contingencies {continued)

Tha assence of the claim s as ollows TKS and consumers (manaaing ontities legal entities and other
consumars) concluded contracls on the supply of water and an acceplance of wasle waler al the same
lime TGC-4 has conlracls will the same consumers on supply of heal In the form of hot waler Waler for
the purposes of hal waler supply is delivered by TKS ta Cenlral Heatng Points ("CHP") owned by TGC-4
then this water (s heated and delivered to consumers via TGC-4's nelwarks Consumets pay TGC-4 only
for the cost of energy used to haat the water Consumers are supposed 1o pay TKS for the cost of the
water, The volume of waler, the payment of which Is claimed by TKS, has been calculated in fhe
subinitied claims as the diffarenca batwean the volume of waler npul 1o CHP and the volume of water
sold by TKS 1o final consuiners, determingd besed on consumption norms, confracted capacities and
other paramalers set up n the lowh of Tambay

TG4 disputes the claims and has laken action |o challenge them As at 31 December 2008 a provision
was formed [or this legal contingency

In addition, the Group is a defendant in & number of arbitration proceedings the risk of Incurring loss n
which [s assessed as ligh. as al the reporting date such clalms amounled to BR 1481949 thousand

The Company created a provision of RR 812,581 thousand agalnst the ull amount of possible claims as
al the reporting date, the execution of which is expected in 2008

Management believes that olher currently existing claims ar suits to enfiies of the Group (not stated
above) and final decislons taken on tham do not nelude any [hal could have significant advarse impacl
on the financigl positian of the Group

Entities of the Group submitted a numbear of courl claims related to thelr disputes with the customers
{(utilities) regarding the scope of provided heal supply sarvices Tha ¢ourt elaims |2 [he above companies
in part have already been zatislied, under the establishad court practice disputes regarding the sope of
provided heat supply services are generally resolved in favor of the Group, The Group does nol expect
any losses in connachon with these claims

Movements ol provision for legal claims are prasented below

31 Docembar Pravision Provision 31 December

_ Narrative 2007 Provision used reversal charge 2008
Froviaon for

lagal elaims N a8,568 C(1R,784) {(14.515) 802,399 H12 501

Tax contingency

Russian 1ax, currency and customs legislation Is subject lo varying interpretation, and changes, which can
occur frequently. Managamant's Interpretalion of such legislation as applied to the lransactions and
activity of the Group may ba challanged by the relavant regional and fedaral authoritias, in particular the
way of accounting for tax purposas of waler tax, deductibility of cerain expansas and propery raceived in
e course of rearganisalion, Recent evenls wilhin the Russian Federmlion suggest thal the tax authorilies
may be taking a mora assaerlive pesition in their interpretation of the Iegislation and assesaments As a
result, significant additional laxes, penalties and intaresl may be assessed. Fiscal pariods rarmain open o
review by the authorities In respect of taxes for thiee calendar years pnor lo the year of review, Linder
cerain circumstances review may cover longer pariods.

In addition, tax and other legisiation do nol address specifically all the aspects of the Group's
reorpanisation relaed to reforming of the electric utilfies industry  As such there may be tax and lagal
challenges to (he various nlerpretations, transactions and resclutions thal were a parl ol the
rearganisation and reform process,

Ag at 31 December 2008 management belleves that ts Intarpretation of the relevant logslation s
appropriate and the Group's lax, currency and customs positions will be sustained Where managamien|
believes || is probable thal a positlon canno! be sustained, an appropnale amount has been accrued for in
these linanclal statements
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Mote 26. Contingencies {continued)

Environmental matters

Giroup entities have operated in the elsctric power industry in the Russian Federation fai many vears. The
epnforcement ol environmental regulalion In the Russian Federation is evolving and [he enforcamenl
posture of government authorties & continually baing reconsidered. The Group enfities perodically
evaluate their abligations under enviranmental regulalions. Potential labilities might anse as a reaull of
changes in legislation and regulation or cwil litigation The impact of these polential changes cannol be
estimated but could be material [n the current epforcement climate undar existing legislation,
management balieves that thare are no significant llabililies for environmental damage.

Guaraniees

Guaranleas are |rrevocable assurances (hal the Group will make payments in (he event thal anather parly
cannol meel its obligations As at 31 December 2008 the Group issued guarantees in respect of the
barrowings drawn down by related and olher parties in aocordance with the contracts of guarantees in the
tolal amount of RR 428 441 thousand (21 Decamber 2007 RRE 347 810 thousand)

Nature of M Docember 31 December
Countarparty Rabtor relationship . R008 2007
JSC "Russian Bank of Guatanies lar credil
Davelopmeni® LLC“IR Leusing” agroemeni 10,032 315,50
, . Guaraniae for latarn of
GAZPROMBANE (ISC)  JSC "Eneigosascads” crodil agroemant 230,166
JEC "Gazprombank Guarantas for credil
GAZPROMBANK (JSC) _ Leasing’ agmemen! _ 8243 26,275
Total 428441 341,810

Mote 27, Financlal Instrumants and financial risk factors

Financial Flsk faciors

The Group's activities expose it 1o a variety of financial risks, including the electz of changes in foreian
currency exchange rates, changes in inferest rales, and the collectability of receivables. The Group does
not have any risk palicy to hedge |ts financial exposures

Liguldity risk

Prudent liquidity nisk management includes maintaining sufficient level of cash and liquidity of sacurilies
availability of funding from an adequate amount of committad credil facilities and the ability to close
positions on financial markets

The Group adheres to the balanced model of financing of working capltal = both at the expense of shorl-
term and leng-erm sources Tempeorarily avallable funds are placed into shorl-term financial instiuments
mainly bank dapasiis,

The lable below analyses the Group's financial fiabililies nto retevant malurly groupings based on the
remaining period gl the balance sheet fo the contraciual matunty dale. The amaounts disclasad in the 1able
ara the contractual undiscounted cash flows
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Mote 27. Financial instruments and financial risk factors (continued)

From 3

Lesathen Fromital From 1to & Tatal
31 Decemiber 2008 moinths
S ente 1 manih mornths 1o 1 year yRars
Bonds inoiuding future prindpal
and interast paymeants = 2,728 520 2,728,530
Bank loans Including futura
piineipal and inlerasl payments 93,529 1,784 358 1,420, 194 1,075 Ly 4 374 048
Finance leass inblily 20,572 42,823 212 681 223 G652,080
Trade payables 556, 864 44,331 16,464 660,658
Tatal future payments 722,985 1,861,312 4,378,859 1,353,180 8,316,316
31 December2007 B
Baonds including future principal
and Interast paymanls 26,030 : 2843170 2,788,520 5,308,720
Eank loars Including futlire
prineipal and ilarest payments 506,074 Byh,602 3,434 875 162,630 5110,171
Flnance laase liabllity 37,1868 82,018 267 BED H82 088 apg,bhd
Trade payables 408 387 - - 408,357
Total future payments 977 659 1,028,710 6,335 725 3484138 11,826,232

The Group aims o mamtain flexbility i its funding requirements by moniloring (s cash positian (through
budgeting) and keaping committed cradit lines available

In 2008 TGC altracted RR 15,822 000 thousand, issulng additional shares (Nole 1) Managamen|
believes that as at 31 December 2008 the Group doas not have any significant liquidity risk a8 its current
assels sufficiently excead Its current liabilities

Dacision on [ha Group's debl struciure i made based an minimization of the debl's oost, availability of
barrowings and profit maximizing

Interest rate risk

The Group's operating profits and cash fiows lrom operating activily are independant from changas n
market Inlerest rales The Group is exposed 1o Interesl rale risk through market valua fluctuations of
Intérast bearing long-term and shori-lerm borrowings (Moles 18 17) Substanhially all of the Gioup's long-
term and short-term barrowings are at fixed nterest rates and cradit |ines are avallabile in several cradit
organizaligng at ihe same lime,

As al 31 Decamber 2008 the maximum interest rate on received loans was 16.5% paon the ectual delt
amount, however the loan interes! rates may be increased by the bank unilaterally, including in connechion
with a higher refinance rate of Ceniral Bank of the Russian Fadaration, This increases advarse sffec of
potential interest rate changes.

Proceeds received from the issue of adafional sharas (Mote 1) allowed to reduce the volume of dabl
which miligates he inleres fate Hsk

The Group has significant assels represented by Interesl bearnng deposits These deposils are nol
subject to significant inlerest rata risk as they are shart-term and corresponding depaosil agreaments do
not provide for any unilateral change of interest rales by banks.

Credit risk

The cradil risk represents the risk of defaull by the Group contractors of their obligations (o the Group
when due and in Hill

Cradit risk anses from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks, as well as credil BXpOSUTEs o
whalesale and ratail custemers, Including outstanding recawalilos and commlited iransactions
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{in thousands of Russian Redbles, unlass alhaiwiso stalad)

Mote 27, Financial instruments and financial risk factors (continued)
Group's financial assets, which are exposed 1o cradil risk, are follows.

Narrativa 31 Decembaor 31 Decamber
S — 2008 ..2007
Cash and cash equivalems 4 BAZ 04 88,697
Bank deposiis 4600000

lrzigle pecevablas leay impalien 2480980 | 656,325
Oiher accounts receivable lasys impaimmean 166,356 104,847
Guorantee - 428441 341,810
Maximum exposure to credit risks 12,168,471, 2,301,713

Group holds cash in the mosl sale Russian banks, according the ratinga glven by raling agencies and
considers il enough to presant ralings to assess the aradit quality of bank balances as actually e ratings
ara high In comparison with other banka in Russia

Financial sssets which potentiglly subject the Group entities to concentrations of credil risk consisl
principally of trade and other recaivablas

Cradit risks, related to trada and othar receivablas, are systematcally reviewad for possibility af ereation
of Impairment provisian against (rade and other receivables Trade and olhar recaivables balance nettad
with trade and other receivables impairment provision represents maximum exposure to credil risks,
relating to recaivables. Despite the fact that cash collection s subject 16 influence of diferant aconginic
factors, Management of lhe Group belleves thal there s no slgnificant risk al losses excesding
racognized trade and other receivables impairmeant pravision

There are no significant contaciors who eanstitutes maore than 10% of the Group revanue, conseguently
there is no concantration of cradit risk far the Group fram the managemant point af view

The Group hag developad and approvad credit palicy, ensuring the maintenance of debl position levals
and cost of dabts levels. Cradit risk is managed on the Group basis. For customers there is no
independent rating and therefore the Group assesses lhe oredil quality of the customer, taking inlo
gecaunl ila financial position. past experience and allar factors.

Fair value

Managament beliasves that tha far valua of its financial assets and labiliies approximates their carrying
amounts. The carrying value less impairment provision of frade rece|vables and payables are assumed 1o
approximate their fair values due to the shorl-term nalure of frade receivables. The fair value of inancial
llabilties for disclosure purposes (s estimated by discounting the fulure confractual cash flows at the
current market inlerast rale thal is avallable far Group Tor simllar financial instruments

The maximum exposure for each nsk 15 imited 1o the (air volue of each class of hnancial instrument

Financial instruments categories
Finanzial instruments include the following categares of inancial assets and habilities
. Loans and  Available-forsalo Other financial

31 December 2008 receivables  financial assets labilitles Total
Asanis
Lang-tarm sccourils rocisiviable 14,850 - 14 950
Dihar non=cliran agsats #8,328 114,187 140,488
Agnounis iseeivable 28473368 2647338
Barik deposits 4.500,000 - 4,500,000
Cash and cash equivaients 4592664 - S 4592 694
Total assels 11.783.308 112,161 . 11.805 460
53
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Mote 27, Financial Instruments and linancial risk factors (continued)
y Loans and  Avallable-Torsale  Other {inancial

31 December 2008 recoivables  financial assels labilities Total

Liabijlitios

Man-currenl eebit : - 1,078,544 1,078,544

Currant dabl and current

porion of nor-current defst e 5,870,620 5.870.628
_Trade accounts payasble x = 650,850 650,654

Total liabilities - - 7.599.820 7.599.820
_31 Decomber 2007 N R

Assels

Long-term accounts oeeivalile 56,064 . - 56,080

Other non-guiranl assets a8 538 a2 4649 - 121,007

Accoints receivable 1,761,272 - 1,761,272

Other eurrant azsuts 18,204 - - 16,200

Gash and cash oquivalonts 198,837 — E _ 188,837

Total assets 2,070,725 82,469 - 2,153,194

Liabilitios

Man-cupreni debi i - 5 568,470 5,568,470

Currant debl anid cuireni

portion of non-cuirent diebt : - 4. 954 707 4 8164, 707
_Trade accounts payable —_— 408,387 408,387

Total liabilities - - 10,961,564 10,961,564

Currency risks

Electric powar praduced by the Groug Is sold on Ihe internal markel of the Russian Federalion witl prices
fixed n the currency of the Russian Federation Hence, lhe Group's net exposure 1o currency risk on
operaling activity thal ate denominated In a currency other than the Russian Roubles is kapt al minimum
level The financial condition of the Company, its liquidity, Iinant‘.mg sources and the resulis ol agliviies
do not considerably depend on currency rates as the Group activities are planned to be performed in
such a way [hat |ls labilifies be denominatad in the national currancy That is why the influence of foraign
currency rates flucluations an the financial position of the Group is estimated as insignificani

Howevar the Group is exposed to foreign exchanga ilsk arising from cumency accounts and deposil
balances (Nale 13) The following table as al 31 Dacember 2008 presenis sangitivities of profit and oss
and aquily t¢ reasonably pessible changes in exchange rajes apphed al the balance shaet date ralative lo
the functional currency of the Group, with all other variablas held consiant

Expected impact Bhﬂl‘_‘lﬂiﬂn US doilar E!Ellﬂnﬂﬂ ralo agnhmt i RUHHIELEHI:I}_]E'_
- L =30% 20% +20% +30%
Impact on profil and loss 1,390,588) (BET.DHEY BAT (68 1,330,588

Impaet on capial

The exposure was calculaled only lof deposils and cash balances denominated in currency olher than
Riussian Raolble

Capital risk

Capltal risk managemeni relates fo the compliance with the Russian legislation and credit palicy
implamentation to maintain an optimal capital structure and reduce the cost of capital

The following capital regquirements have been eslablished for joint stock companies by the legislation of
the Russian Federalion:

+  share capital can not be lower than 1000 mimmum salares on the date of the campany
registration;

+ ifthe share capital of tha anfity is greater than statutory nel assets of the enlily, such ennity musi
decrease s share capltal o the value nol exceading |ts nel assels

54
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MNote 27. Financial instruments and financial risk factors (continued)

= il the minimum allowed share capltal is greater than statulery net assets of the entily. such entity
is subjecl to liquidation

As al 31 December 2008 the Group enttes ware fn compliance with the above share capital
fequirements

The Group's objectives when managing caplial are 1o saleguard the Group's ability to conlinue &s a going
concefn ih order to provide retums for shareholders and benafits for other stakeholdars and 1o maintain
an optimal capital stricture to reduce the cost of capital

I arder lo maintain or adjust the capilal structure, the Group may adjus! tha amount of dividends pald to
shareholdars, returh capital to shareholders, [ssua pew shares of sell agsets 16 raduce debt

Conzistent with ather compamas in the indusiry, the Group monilors capital on the basis of the geanng
ratio, and ensures (hal the ralio is not more than 1.0 This ratio is calculated as debt divided by total
capital Debt |5 calculated as total borrowings, as shown in the consolidaled balance sheel Tolal capital
is calculated as edquily, as shown in the consolidaled balance sheet

Gealing ratios were 0.27 ag at 31 December 2008, 0.28 as al 31 Decamber 2007 tcspt,ctwe

31 December 19 nurnmhw
Narrative 2008 - 2007
Nun “eurreEnt g eu anl dabls 6,940 170 10853 177
Equity 26,768 500 26,671,367
_Gearlng r ratio — 0.21 0.28

The Group's policy of capital rsk managemaenlt is based on the following financial ratios debt to EBITDA
fatio and interest paymeants coverage by EBITDA EBITDA equal to samings before the deduction of
interest expanse and financing items, non-cash impairment and disposal charges. income faxes and
deprecialion

The dabi lo EBITDA rallos were 3 08 as at 31 December 2008 and 3 29 as at 31 December 2007

Interest expense covérage by EBITDA wara 2 .60 far year ended 31 December 2008 and 4 11 for the year
ended 31 December 2007

31 Docembar 31 Decombor
MNarrative 2008 2007
Cparating loss (11 850, 763) (5,878 867
Rovaluabion wrile down . (6,267.914)
impaimment (Charge) [ reversal related lo proporly,
plant and sguiprment (10,600,562 270 480
Depraciatian af properly, plant and squipment 1,488,538 3,200,680
EBITDA 2,248,637 3,202 248
Non-current and curnenl dama 8,948 170 10,663,177
Nﬂn-ﬂurm nt and r.urrunt :qutu [EBITDA S 3.08 3.29
nterost gxpense = B{M 120 ??B HE4A
_EBITDA | Inferust expenss 2.60 d 11

Note 28. Subsequent event

Dividends

The annugl dividend amounit per praference share for 2008 was appioved by the TGC-4 general meaating
of sharehalders on 11 June 2009 and equals 1o RR 000002342143 per share, Al the sama lime the
TGC-4 ganeral meeling of shareholders decided not to pay any dividends on the ordinary shares The
ttal smount of declared annual dividends for 2008 15 RR 1 763 thousahd
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